
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Major Applications 
Planning 
Committee 

 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 7 AUGUST 
2013 
 

Time: 6.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 
John Hensley (Vice-Chairman) 
Janet Duncan (Labour Lead) 
David Allam 
Dominic Gilham 
Michael Markham 
John Morgan 
Brian Stead 
  

  
Published: Tuesday, 30 July 2013 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact: Nadia Williams 
Tel: 01895 277655 
Fax: 01896 277373 
nwilliams@hillingdon.gov.uk 
 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=325&MId=1831&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Electronic devices 
 
Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is 
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make 
their way to the signed refuge locations. 
 

 



 

A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 
 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.  
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.  
Recording of meetings – This is not allowed, 
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more borough residents can speak at a 
Planning Committee in support of or against an 
application.  Petitions must be submitted in 
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.  
Where there is a petition opposing a planning 
application there is also the right for the 
applicant or their agent to address the meeting 
for up to 5 minutes.   
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  
Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 
 
 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  
Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   
The procedure will be as follows:-  
1. The Chairman will announce the report;  
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 

 

followed by any Ward Councillors; 
4. The Committee may ask questions of the 
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  
Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  
When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such as the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal based on material planning 
considerations.   
If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  
 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 
CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 13 June and 25 
June 2013 

1 - 16 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent  

5 To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered in public 
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private 

 

 
Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press 
 

Major Applications without Petitions 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

6 The Arena, Stockley 
Park, Stockley Road 
West Drayton 
    
37800/APP/2013/161 
 
 

Botwell 
 

Development of Stockley Arena to 
provide additional office 
accommodation, including a 
single-storey extension to the 
central rotunda and to the 
southern wing to create a new 
second floor, together with a two-
storey extension above the 
existing refuse storage and 
deliveries area to the north. 
 
Recommendation: Delegated 
Authority to approve subject to 
the Environment Agency 
withdrawing their objection and 
Stage II referral to the Greater 
London Authority. 
 

17 – 46 
 

121 142  



 

7 Knights of Hillingdon 
Uxbridge Road 
Hillingdon 
   
15407/APP/2013/1170 
 
 

Hillingdon 
East 
 

Retrospective planning application 
to vary condition 4 (that the 
development hereby permitted 
shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans) 
to outline planning permission (Ref 
15407/APP/2009/1838)  granted 
on appeal on 17 June 2010 for the 
"erection of new health centre and 
12 residential units with ancillary 
car parking and landscaped 
amenity space" to seek and retain 
the building as built including 
divergences from the approved 
scheme in respect to the roof 
profile that serves the lift shaft on 
the rear elevation of the building, 
the disabled car parking provision 
and the level access provided to 
the building entrance involving the 
introduction of a 'bridge structure' 
over a void adjacent to the rear 
elevation. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

47 – 62 
 

143 -154 

8 Former RAF Uxbridge 
Hillingdon Road 
Uxbridge 
 
585/APP/2013/979 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North 
 

Reserved matters (appearance, 
layout, scale and landscaping) in 
compliance with conditions 2 and 
3 for Phase 1, Seventh Application 
(Eastern Side of District Park) of 
planning permission ref: 
585/APP/2009/2752 dated 
18/01/2012 for the proposed 
mixed-use redevelopment of St 
Andrews Park (Former RAF 
Uxbridge site). 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

63 – 74 
 

154 -162 

9 Norwich Union House 
1 - 3 Bakers Road 
Uxbridge 
     
8218/APP/2011/1853 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North 
 

Redevelopment of Norwich Union 
House to erect a 9 storey building 
comprising retail floorspace at 
ground floor level and 8 storeys of 
residential units (37 units) with 
associated gym, access and 
parking arrangements. 
 
Recommendation: S106 
Agreement 

75 – 80 
 

 



 

10 Padcroft Works 
Tavistock Road 
West Drayton 
    
45200/APP/2012/3082 
 
 

Yiewsley 
 

Comprehensive redevelopment of 
site to provide three buildings of 
part 7 storeys and part 5 storeys 
comprising 208 residential units, 
190 sq.m (approx) of Use Class 
B1 floorspace with associated 
public and private amenity space, 
hard and soft landscaping, lower 
ground floor parking for vehicles 
and bicycles, and alterations to 9 
High Street to form new pedestrian 
route (involving demolition of all 
existing buildings other than no.9 
High Street). 
 
Recommendation: Delegated 
Authority to approve subject to 
a legal agreement and Stage II 
referral to the Greater London 
Authority.  
 

81 – 120 
 

163 -182 

11 Any Items transferred from Part 1 
 
 

12 Any Other Business in Part 2 
 
 

Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee     Page 121 - 182 



Minutes 
 
MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
13 June 2013 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors David Allam 
Judith Cooper (In place of Michael Markham) 
Janet Duncan (Labour Lead) 
Dominic Gilham 
John Hensley (Vice-Chairman) 
Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 
John Morgan 
Brian Stead 
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Matt Duigan, Planning Services Manager, Meg Hirani, Planning Team Manager, Nicole 
Cameron, Legal Services, Gill Oswell, Democratic Services. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 

 Apologies had been received from Councillor Michael Markham with 
Councillor Judith Cooper substituting.  
 

 

3. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 
WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 

 It was confirmed that all business would be heard in public.  
 

 

4. STOCKLEY PARK GOLF COURSE, STOCKLEY ROAD, WEST 
DRAYTON      37850/APP/2012/2732  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

Action by 

 Erection of lightweight open fronted driving range enclosure. 
 
In answer to an issue raised in relation to the importation of soil, 
officers advised that the landscaping was to take place in already 
landscaped areas and therefore a condition was not required.  Change 
of levels or importation of soil would automatically require planning 
permission.  
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the 
vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved – That the application be approved subject to the 
conditions and informatives set out in the officers except 
condition 9, which was deleted as it was no longer required. 
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

 
 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 3

Page 1



  
5. 8 - 12 LEES PARADE, UXBRIDGE     1803/APP/2013/733  (Agenda 

Item 7) 
 

Action by 

 Demolition of warehouse and conversion of and extensions to 
existing office building to provide a part three, part four storey 
building containing 14 residential units 3 retail/office spaces (Use 
Class A1/B1), with associated parking and amenity space. 
 
The committee asked for amended plans to be provided showing those 
elements of the proposal that were being required by condition. 
 
It was moved, seconded and agreed that the application be deferred to 
enable amended plans to be provided.   
 
Resolved - That the application be deferred to enable amended 
plans showing those elements being required by condition.  
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

6. LAND AT 37 - 45 DUCKS HILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD      
59214/APP/2013/852  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

Action by 

 Variation of Condition 4 (Approved Drawings) to allow the 
enlargement of the single storey rear additions, changes to 
disabled facilities and fenestration on Plots 6 and 7 of planning 
permission granted 16/11/10, ref. 59214/APP/2010/1776: Erection 
of 8 detached and 6 semi-detached dwellings with associated 
access, parking and landscaping. 
 
Officers introduced the report informing members of the variations that 
were being proposed to the already approved scheme.   
 
In answer to an issue raised regarding the disabled facilities, officers 
advised that the change was to provide a through ceiling lift and would 
not impact on the other disabled facilities being provided.  
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the 
vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That subject to no additional responses being received that raise 
relevant material planning considerations that have not already 
been considered in this report, delegated powers be given to the 
Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces to grant planning 
permission, subject to the following: 
 
(i) A financial contribution of £117,713 for education facilities and 
places 
(ii) A financial contribution of £11,678.51 for healthcare facilities 
and places. 
(iii) A financial contribution of £20,000 towards community 
facilities/the public realm. 
(iv) A financial contribution of £1,239.70 towards libraries. 
(v) A financial contribution towards training initiatives equal to 
£2,500 for every £1 million build cost. 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 2



  
(vi) The applicants pay a sum to the Council of 5% of the value of 
contributions for specified requirements to project manage and 
oversee implementation of elements of the completed planning 
(and/or highways) agreement(s). 
(vii) The applicant shall agree to the full and complete costs to 
undertake the necessary works, as identified by the Council, for 
off site highway works, including: 
 

a) Junction improvements to the site access with Ducks Hill 
Road 

 
(viii) Agreement that if the applicant implements this planning 
permission, they will not implement any other planning 
permissions for this site. 
 
2. That in respect of the application for planning permission, the 
applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation 
of the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the 
agreement not being completed. 
 
3. That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been 
agreed and the S106 legal agreement has not been finalised by 
the 08th July 2013, or any other period deemed appropriate by the 
Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces then delegated 
authority be granted to the Head of Planning, Sport and Green 
Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason: 
 
The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the 
improvement of services and facilities as a consequence of 
demands created by the proposed development (in respect of 
education, health, community facilities and libraries, construction 
and employment training facilities, monitoring and highway 
junction works). The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies 
(November 2012). 
 
4. That subject to the above, the application be deferred for 
determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 
under delegated powers, subject to the completion of the legal 
agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant. 
 
5. That if the application is approved, the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officer’s report be attached. 
 

7. LAND AT 37 - 45 DUCKS HILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD      
59214/APP/2013/849  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

Action by 

 Variation of Condition 4 (Approved Drawings) to allow the 
erection of a single storey rear addition, changes to disabled 
facilities and replacement of ground floor window on south 
elevation with door on Plot 10 of planning permission granted 
16/11/10, ref. 59214/APP/2010/1776: Erection of 8 detached and 6 
semi-detached dwellings with associated access, parking and 
landscaping. 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 3



  
Officers introduced the report informing members of the variations that 
were being proposed to the already approved scheme.   
 
It was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote the 
recommendation was agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Sport 
and Green Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the 
following: 
 
(i) A financial contribution of £117,713 for education facilities and 
places 
(ii) A financial contribution of £11,678.51 for healthcare facilities 
and places. 
(iii) A financial contribution of £20,000 towards community 
facilities/the public realm. 
(iv) A financial contribution of £1,239.70 towards libraries. 
(v) A financial contribution towards training initiatives equal to 
£2,500 for every £1 million build cost. 
(vi) The applicants pay a sum to the Council of 5% of the value of 
contributions for specified requirements to project manage and 
oversee implementation of elements 
of the completed planning (and/or highways) agreement(s). 
(vii) The applicant shall agree to the full and complete costs to 
undertake the necessary works, as identified by the Council, for 
off site highway works, including: 
 
a) Junction improvements to the site access with Ducks Hill Road. 
 
(viii) Agreement that if the applicant implements this planning 
permission, they will not implement any other planning 
permissions for this site. 
 
2. That in respect of the application for planning permission, the 
applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation 
of the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the 
agreement not being completed. 
 
3. That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been 
agreed and the S106 legal agreement has not been finalised by 
the 08th July 2013, or any other period deemed appropriate by the 
Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces then delegated 
authority be granted to the Head of Planning, Sport and Green 
Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason: 
 
The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the 
improvement of services and facilities as a consequence of 
demands created by the proposed development (in respect of 
education, health, community facilities and libraries, construction 
and employment training facilities, monitoring and highway 
junction works). The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies 
(November 2012). 

Page 4



  
4. That subject to the above, the application be deferred for 
determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 
under delegated powers, subject to the completion of the legal 
agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant. 
 
5. That if the application is approved, that the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officers and addendum sheet 
circulated report be attached. 
 

8. LAND AT 37 - 45 DUCKS HILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD      
59214/APP/2013/848  (Agenda Item 10) 
 

Action by 

 Variation of Condition 4 (Approved Drawings) to allow 
study/games room to be provided for Plot 8 within the roofspace 
of the detached triple garage serving Plots 6, 7 and 8, involving 
replacement of a hip end with a gable roof, installation of two rear 
dormers and an external staircase of planning permission granted 
16/11/10, ref. 59214/APP/2010/1776: Erection of 8 detached and 6 
semi-detached dwellings with associated access, parking and 
landscaping. 
 
Members raised concerns in regard to the relationship between plots 7 
& 8 in relation to the raised roof to the garage that was being proposed.  
The committee felt that the visual impact and the breach of the 15 
metre rule was clearly against the Council’s policy. 
 
Officers advised that the rooms that would be affected was a dining 
room and bedroom.   The committee were also informed that if a 
dormer was required at a later date on the front of the building a further 
application would be required, and was covered by Condition 7. 
 
It was moved that the application should be refused on the grounds of 
visual impact and the distances breached the 15 metre rule.  On being 
put to the vote refusal was agreed. 
 
Resolved – That the application be refused for the following 
reasons:- 
 
The proposal, by reason of its position, size, scale, bulk and 
design would result in a visually obtrusive development that 
would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the 
overall development and to the amenities of the occupier of Plot 7 
by reason of visual intrusion, over domination and loss of 
outlook. The proposal is thus contrary to Policy BE1 of the 
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 
2012) and Policies BE13, BE19 and BE21  of the Hillingdon Local 
Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies (November 2012).    
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 5



  
 

9. LAND AT 37 - 45 DUCKS HILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD      
59214/APP/2013/847  (Agenda Item 11) 
 

Action by 

 Variation of Condition 4 (Approved Drawings) to allow the 
enlargement of the single storey rear additions, changes to 
disabled facilities and fenestration on Plots 4 and 5 of planning 
permission granted 16/11/10, ref. 59214/APP/2010/1776: Erection 
of 8 detached and 6 semi-detached dwellings with associated 
access, parking and landscaping. 
 
Officers introduced the report informing the committee of the variations 
being requested to the previously approved application.  
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the 
vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That subject to no additional responses being received that raise 
relevant material planning considerations that have not already 
been considered in this report, delegated powers be given to the 
Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces to grant planning 
permission, subject to the following: 
 
 (i) A financial contribution of £117,713 for education facilities and 
places (ii) A financial contribution of £11,678.51 for healthcare 
facilities and places. 
(iii) A financial contribution of £20,000 towards community 
facilities/the public realm. 
(iv) A financial contribution of £1,239.70 towards libraries. 
(v) A financial contribution towards training initiatives equal to 
£2,500 for every £1 million build cost. 
(vi) The applicants pay a sum to the Council of 5% of the value of 
contributions for specified requirements to project manage and 
oversee implementation of elements 
of the completed planning (and/or highways) agreement(s). 
(vii) The applicant shall agree to the full and complete costs to 
undertake the necessary works, as identified by the Council, for 
off site highway works, 
including: 

a) Junction improvements to the site access with Ducks Hill Road 
 

(viii) Agreement that if the applicant implements this planning 
permission, they will not implement any other planning 
permissions for this site. 
 
2. That in respect of the application for planning permission, the 
applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation 
of the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the 
agreement not being completed. 
 
 
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 6



  
3. That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been 
agreed and the S106 legal agreement has not been finalised by 
the 08th July 2013, or any other period deemed appropriate by the 
Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces then delegated 
authority be granted to the Head of Planning, Sport and Green 
Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason: 
 
The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the 
improvement of services and facilities as a consequence of 
demands created by the proposed development (in respect of 
education, health, community facilities and libraries, construction 
and employment training facilities, monitoring and highway 
junction works). The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies 
(November 2012). 
 
4. That subject to the above, the application be deferred for 
determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 
under delegated powers, subject to the completion of the legal 
agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant. 
 
5. That if the application is approved, the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officer’s report be attached. 
 

10. FORMER REINDEER PUBLIC HOUSE, MAXWELL ROAD, 
NORTHWOOD       18958/APP/2013/694  (Agenda Item 12) 
 

Action by 

 Minor Material Amendment application, seeking modifications to 
balconies of flats 2 & 6, amendments to the internal layouts of 
flats 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12; amendments to roof and 
introduction of roof terraces to flats 11 and 12; increase in depth 
of northern front bay, provision of doors to front gardens for flats 
4 and 5, use of front bays as terraces for flats 8 and 9; and 
reconfiguration of windows on the south west (courtyard) 
elevation, together with amendments to Parking Control 
Methodology. (S73 Application for amendments to approved plans 
under condition 4 and variation of condition 7 of planning 
permission 18958/APP/2011/873 dated 13/07/2011 (residential 
development)). 
 
The committee asked for an informative to be added to highlight that as 
part of condition 2 obscure screening would be required. 
 
The recommendation for approval with the additional informative was 
moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Sport 
and Green Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the 
following: 
 
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 7



  
1. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the 
applicants under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) and/or S278 of the Highways Act (as 
amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure: 
 
(i). Off Site Highways Works 
ii). Education: A financial contribution for nursery and primary 
school places in the sum of £28,287. 
(iii). Health: The Primary Care Trust have sought a contribution 
towards local primary health care facilities in the sum of 
£4,554.40. 
(iv). Community facilities: A contribution in the sum of £10,000 
towards expansion of local community facilities has been agreed. 
(v). Libraries: A contribution in the sum of £483 towards library 
books has been agreed. 
(vi). Open space: a contribution in the sum of £28,000 has been 
agreed towards local open space and recreation improvements 
(this is in line with the previous application). 
(vii). Construction Training: A contribution of £ 5,000 towards the 
cost of providing construction skills training within the Borough 
has been agreed. 
(viii). Project Management and Monitoring: A contribution to 
wards project management and monitoring has been agreed, 
equal to 5% of the total cash contributions secured from this 
proposal. 
 
2. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the 
preparation of the Legal Agreement and any abortive work as a 
result of the agreement not being completed. 
 
3. If the Legal Agreement(s) has not been finalised before 
11/07/13, delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, 
Sport and Green Spaces to refuse permission for the following 
reason: 
 
The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the 
improvement of services and facilities as a consequence of 
demands created by the proposed development, including the 
provision of off-site highways works and contributions for 
education, health, community facilities, libraries, open space 
provision and construction training. The scheme therefore 
conflicts with Policies AM2, AM7 and R17 of the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Polices (September 2007) 
and the Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary 
Document (July 2008).  
 
4. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed 
terms of the proposed agreement. 
 
5. That on completion of the S106 Agreement, the application be 
deferred for determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and 
Green Spaces under delegated powers, subject to no material 
objections being received to the public consultation. 
 

Page 8



  
6. That if the application is approved, the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officer’s report and added by the 
committee be attached and an additional informative highlighting 
that condition 2 required that obscure screening would be 
required. 
 

11. HERMITAGE SCHOOL NURSERY & LANCASTER CENTRE SITE, 
LANCASTER ROAD, UXBRIDGE     68164/APP/2013/758  (Agenda 
Item 13) 
 

Action by 

 Application to vary condition 2 (to allow for amendments to the 
stair cores on the rear elevation) of planning permission 
ref:68164/APP/2011/2711 dated 28/11/2012 for  Alterations and 
conversion of the existing Lancaster Centre building into 7 self-
contained flats. Demolition of the existing Hermitage Nursery 
Building and construction of a two storey (with accommodation in 
roof) block of 12 flats with associated car parking, soft and hard 
landscaping (19 residential flats in total). 
 
In answer to an issue raised in relation to informative 3 & 7, the 
committee was informed that these needed to be amended.  
Informative 3 to ‘and 18.00’ after 08.00 in the second line and 
Informative 7 to change ‘conclude’ to ‘include’. 
 
It was moved and seconded that the recommendation with informative 
3 & 7 amended be agreed and on being put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved –  
 
1. That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant 
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) and/or Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 (as 
amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to secure: 
 
a. Mayoral CIL: a contribution of £25,499 
b. Affordable Housing: either 4 x 1bed units on site or a payment 
in lieu of on site delivery in the sum of £378,000. 
c. Education: a contribution in the sum of £37,604. 
d. Health: a contribution in the sum of £6,972.44. 
e. Libraries Contribution: Libraries: a contribution in the sum of 
£740.14. 
f. Construction Training: a contribution in the sum of £3,062.41. 
g. Project Management and Monitoring: a contribution of 5% of 
the total cash contributions secured from this proposal. 
h. Car Parking Permits: No permits shall be issued to future 
occupiers of the flats. 
i. The access road to the development is to be upgraded to 
adoptable standards and offered to the Council for adoption 
under S38 of the Highways Act 1980. 
 
2. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the 
preparation of the Statement and any abortive work as a result of 
the agreement not being completed. 
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 9



  
3. That the officers be authorised to negotiate the terms of the 
proposed statement. 
 
4. That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been 
agreed and the S106 legal agreement has not been finalised 
before 25th June 2013, or any other period deemed appropriate by 
the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces, then delegated 
authority be granted to the Head of Planning, Sport and Green 
Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason: 
 
The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the 
improvement of services and facilities as a consequence of 
demands created by the proposed development (in respect of 
affordable housing, education, health, community facilities and 
libraries, construction and employment training facilities, 
monitoring, Highway works and parking permit restrictions). The 
proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon 
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). 
 
5. That subject to the above, the application be deferred for  
determination by the Head of Planning, Consumer Protection, 
Sport and Green Spaces under delegated powers. 
 
6. That if the application is approved, the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officers report and addendum sheet 
circulated at the meeting be attached and informatives 3 & 7 being 
amended. 
 
Amend Informative 3 - by adding ‘and 18.00 pm’ after ’08.00 am’. 
 
Amend Informative 7 – In the second line change ‘conclude’ to 
‘include’. 
 

12. RAF UXBRIDGE, HILLINGDON ROAD, UXBRIDGE       
585/APP/2013/759  (Agenda Item 14) 
 

Action by 

 Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in 
compliance with conditions 2 and 3 for Infrastructure Phase, 
comprising detailed design of the new ' Spine Road' of planning 
permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18/01/2012 for a new 
mixed used development at St Andrews Park (Former RAF 
Uxbridge Site). 
 
This application was withdrawn from the agenda by the Head of 
Planning. 
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

13. QUEENS WALK RESOURCE CENTRE      12059/APP/2012/2570  
(Agenda Item 15) 
 

Action by 

 Refurbishment and re-cladding of existing building including 
erection of a new entrance lobby and erection of new single 
storey 400sqm building to provide an educational and well being 
facility (Use Class D1). 
 

Matt Duigan 
Meg Hirani 

Page 10



  
This application was withdrawn from the agenda by the Head of 
Planning. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.50 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Gill Oswell on (01895) 250693.  Circulation of these minutes 
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Minutes 
 
MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
25 June 2013 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   
Councillors: Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 

John Hensley (Vice-Chairman) 
Janet Duncan (Labour Lead) 
David Allam 
Dominic Gilham 
Michael Markham 
Brian Stead 
Carol Melvin 
 

 OFFICERS PRESENT:   
James Rodgers, Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 
Meghji Hirani, Planning Team Leader 
Manmohan Ranger, Transport Consultant 
Tim Brown, Legal Advisor 
Danielle Watson, Democratic Services Officer 
 

19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Morgan, 
Councillor Carol Melvin attended as substitute. 
 

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS 
MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 None 
 

21. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL 
BE HEARD IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 It was confirmed that all items would be considered in Part 1 public. 
 

22. QUEENS WALK RESOURCE CENTRE, QUEENS WALK, RUISLIP. HA4 
0LR - 12059/APP/2012/2570  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Refurbishment and re-cladding of existing building including erection 
of a new entrance lobby and erection of new single storey 400sqm 
building to provide an educational and well-being facility (Use Class 
D1), access safety measures, including existing barrier arm, alterations 
to existing pedestrian gate and canopy (amended plan). 
 
Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet 
that had been circulated.  A petition in objection to the application had been 

Public Document Pack

Page 13



  
received but the petitioners were not in attendance. 
 
Members discussed the application and questioned the opening and closing 
hours of the centre.  Members raised concerns regarding traffic and parking 
in the area and whether this would be exasperated.  Members also 
questioned where the designated pick up and drop off point would be 
located.  
 
Members discussed the observations made by the tree officers who were 
satisfied that the existing trees within the site would be retained.  Sport 
England had withdrawn their objection to the application. 
 
The Committee were satisfied that the conditions would be strengthened to 
address their concerns.  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the conditions 
and informatives set out in the officer’s report and addendum sheet 
circulated at the meeting. 
 

23. WILLIAM BYRD PRIMARY SCHOOL, VICTORIA LANE, HARLINGTON - 
11327/APP/2013/1209  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Installation of single storey (temporary) mobile classroom. 
 
Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet 
that had been circulated. 
 
The application was sited within the Green Belt and sought planning 
permission for a temporary double classroom. 
 
Members discussed the Hillingdon Primary Capital Schools Programme and 
the Council’s legal requirement to meet the educational needs of the 
Borough.  Members were concerned that the application was requesting 
temporary consent whilst a long term solution was sought.  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the vote was agreed.  
 
Councillor Janet Duncan requested that her objection to the decision to be 
minuted. 
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the conditions 
and informatives set out in the officer’s report and addendum sheet 
circulated at the meeting. 
 

24. LAND ADJOINING GURU NANAK SIKH ACADEMY, BEACONSFIELD 
ROAD, HAYES. UB4 0LT - 4450/APP/2013/1227  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 Provision of three temporary modular classroom/administration units, 
substation, car/cycle parking, new access arrangements and ancillary 
development (Amended Plan). 

Page 14



  
 
Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet 
that had been circulated. 
 
The application was sited within the Green Belt.  Sports England raised no 
objections to the loss of playing field. Members discussed the Hillingdon 
Primary Capital Schools Programme and the Council’s legal requirement to 
meet the educational needs of the Borough.   
 
Members were concerned that the area was already congested during 
school pick up and drop off times and the proposals would exasperate these 
problems.  Officers informed the Committee that the pick up and drop area 
would not be reduced.      
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the conditions 
and informatives set out in the officer’s report and addendum sheet 
circulated at the meeting.  
 

25. SENATOR COURT, BELMONT ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 68385/APP/2013/902  
(Agenda Item 8) 
 

 Part demolition, part extension and refurbishment of existing building to 
provide modern office accommodation (Class B1) totalling 20,267sqm GEA 
(including car park and plant areas) of which 516sqm GIA floorspace to be 
used interchangeably for Class A1, A2, A3, B1 uses, and associated works. 
 
Officers introduced the report and referred members to the addendum sheet 
that had been circulated.   
 
Members were mindful of the benefits of natural light and questioned 
whether the Friends Meeting House would be overshadowed.  Officers 
informed the Committee that this was not the case and the conservation 
officer had stated that the plans were not detrimental. 
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the, vote was unanimously agreed. 
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the conditions 
and informatives set out in the officer’s report and addendum sheet 
circulated at the meeting. 
 

26. FORMER RAF UXBRIDGE, HILLINGDON ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 
585/APP/2013/759  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in 
compliance with conditions 2 and 3 for Infrastructure Phase, comprising 
detailed design of the new 'Spine Road' of planning permission ref: 
585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18/01/2012 for a new mixed used development at 
St Andrews Park (Former RAF Uxbridge Site). 
 
Officers introduced the report and outlined details of the application. 

Page 15



  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put 
to the, vote was unanimously agreed.  
 
Resolved - That the application be agreed as per the agenda. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.15 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any 
of the resolutions please contact Danielle Watson on 01895 277488 .  
Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and 
Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 16



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE ARENA, STOCKLEY PARK STOCKLEY ROAD WEST DRAYTON 

Development of Stockley Arena to provide additional office accommodation,
including a single-storey extension to the central rotunda and to the southern
wing to create a new second floor, together with a two-storey extension
above the existing refuse storage and deliveries area to the north.

23/01/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 37800/APP/2013/161

Drawing Nos: Heritage Statement - December 2012
Transport Statement - January 2013
Air Quality Assessment - January 2013
Planning Statement - January 2013
Planning Review - January 2013
Energy Statement - 22/02/2013
SBEM L2A Compliance Report - 22/02/2013
198-102 P1
198-001 P2
198-002 P1
198-003 P1
198-004 P1
198-005 P1
198-006 P1
198-007 P1
198-008 P1
198-101 P1
198-103 P1
198-104 P1
198-105 P1
198-106 P1
198-107 P1
198-108 P1
198-109 P1
198-110 P1
198-111 P1
198-112 P1
Design and Access Statement - December 2012

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the development of Stockley Arena to
provide additional office accommodation, including a single-storey extension to the
central rotunda and to the southern wing to create a new second floor, together with a
two-storey extension above the existing refuse storage and deliveries area to the north.

It is not considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable
impact on the visual amenities of the site or on the openness of the Green Belt.  It is not
considered that the development would lead to such a significant increase in traffic that

06/03/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

refusal could be justified on highway grounds.  The proposal is considered to comply with
relevant Local Plan and London Plan policies and, accordingly, approval is recommended
subject to referral of the application to the Mayor of London.

COM3

COM4

COM5

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 198-001 P2, 198-
002 P1, 198-003 P1, 198-004 P1, 198-005 P1, 198-006 P1, 198-007 P1, 198-008 P1,
198-101 P1, 198-102 P1, 198-103 P1, 198-104 P1, 198-105 P1, 198-106 P1, 198-107
P1, 198-108 P1, 198-109 P1, 198-110 P1, 198-111 P1, 198-112 P1 and shall thereafter
be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Design and Access Statement - December 2012
Heritage Statement - December 2012
Transport Statement - January 2013
Air Quality Assessment - January 2013
Planning Statement - January 2013
Planning Review - January 2013
Energy Statement - 22/02/2013
SBEM L2A Compliance Report - 22/02/2013

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

That subject to the Mayor not directing the Council under Article 6 of the Town and
Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008 to refuse the application, or under
Article 7 of the Order that he is to act as the local planning authority for the
purpose of determining the application; AND subject to the Environment Agency
formally withdrawing their objection, delegated powers be given to the Head of
Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to grant planning permission subject to the
following conditions, and any additional conditions and/or informatives which may
be required by the Mayor or the Environment Agency:

Page 18



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM7

COM8

COM9

Materials (Submission)

Tree Protection

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Furthermore,
precise details of the construction and finishes to the timber fin columns should be
provided.

Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

4

5

6

Page 19



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM10 Tree to be retained

1. Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage
2.b Cycle Storage
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are
served by electrical charging points)
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials
2.f External Lighting
2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs in general accordance with drawing
198-101 P1

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance
4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 and 5.17 of the London Plan (July 2011).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree

7

Page 20



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM31

SUS6

COM15

Secured by Design

Green Travel Plan

Sustainable Water Management

surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS
3998:2010 'Tree work - Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for
General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be
completed in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a Travel Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan, as
submitted shall follow the current Travel Plan Development Control Guidance issued by
Transport for London and will include: 

(1) targets for sustainable travel arrangements [insert desired for target(s)];
(2) effective measures for the ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan;
(3) a commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives; and 
(4) effective mechanisms to achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan by both present
and future occupiers of the development.

The development shall be implemented only in accordance with the approved Travel
Plan.

REASON
To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with Policies 6.1 and 6.3 of the London Plan
(July 2011).

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the

8

9

10

Page 21



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Contamination

Imported Soils

Fire Evacuation Plan

development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will: 

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime. 
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

If any potentially contaminated buildings or grounds are found on the site during the
development works the developer shall carry out investigations and chemical testing of
the potentially contaminated building or ground. Any contaminated building or land shall
be remedied to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. Copies of all
documentation relating to the aforementioned investigations and works including
chemical testing, the remediation scheme, the remedial works and the validation report
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subjected to any risks from soil
contamination and all other pollutants in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

All imported soils used for landscaping purposes including soils shall be clean and free of
contamination.

REASON
To ensure that the users of the school development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved a comprehensive fire
emergency plan that demonstrates how disabled people will be safeguarded from fire
and enabled to evacuate the building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

11

12

13

Page 22



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Employment Measures

District Heating System

Car Parking Management

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing an employment
scheme. This shall include measures to ensure to employ local people, to seek to bring
unemployed persons back into employment (such as working with job centre plus) and to
ensure training opportunities, and a timetable for implementation. The approved
employment scheme shall then be implemented in accordance with the agreed scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to employment
opportunities, in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD.

Prior to commencement of the development details of how the building will be designed
so as to ensure that the development is compatible with and capable of connection to
any potential future district heating network/networks shall be submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the development shall be carried
out and maintained in full accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved the applicant shall
submit a detailed car parking allocation/management plan to address the management of
car parking around the application site shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.  The  car parking allocation/management plan shall contain
a suite of measure, which may include but not be limited to:
(i)  Proivison of clear directional signage to all parking zones;
(ii) Measures to encourage users of the gym from using parking within Zone B (as
identified within the submitted Transport Statement)
(iii) Allocate specific exclusive office based spaces
(iv) Allocate tenant specific spaces for the retail units to be used by Staff only
(v) Implement measures to discourage/prevent unauthorised long stay parking.

Thereafter the approved car parking allocation/management plan shall be implemented
prior to the occupation of the building and thereafter maintained for the life of the
development.

REASON
To ensure that the car parking is managed in a way which ensures the availability of an
appropriate number of parking spaces in the interested of highway and pedestrian safety
and in compliance with Policies AM2 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

14

15

16

INFORMATIVES

Page 23



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
BE8
BE12

BE13
BE15
BE18
BE38

LE1
OE1

OE7

OE8

OE11

OL1

OL2
OL4

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily
listed buildings
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Page 24



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I3

I11

Building to Approved Drawing

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

3

4

5

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and

OL5
>>
LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.2
LPP 4.3
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.16

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
London Plan (2011) Policies
(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2011) Outer London: economy
(2011) Outer London: Transport
(2011) Developing London's economy
(2011) Offices
(2011) Mixed use development and offices
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation
(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Green roofs and development site environs
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Strategic Approach
(2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Walking
(2011) Parking
(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Designing out crime
(2011) Local character
(2011) Architecture
(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology
(2011) Green Belt

Page 25



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I12

I15

I19

I34

Notification to Building Contractors

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

6

7

8

9

safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE.
Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development. 

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

Page 26



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I58

I60

Opportunities for Work Experience

Cranes

10

11

· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice.  AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, services and premises.  Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you.  A guide for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership. 

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd:  contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE  Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction.  The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.  This
is explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available
at www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

Page 27



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

12

13

14

3.1 Site and Locality

Located to the east of Stockley Road, the application site accommodates the Stockley
Arena which is part of Stockley Park, a 47 Ha former landfill site which was successfully
redeveloped into a business park in the late 1980's and now has international renown as
one of the first business parks of its kind, and for the very high quality architecture and
strong integration of landscaping into the design.

With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer.  In respect of
surface water, it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage.
When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be
separated and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary.  Connections are
not permitted for the removal of ground water.  Where the developer proposed t
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will
be required.  This is to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be
detrimental to the existing sewerage system.

Access:
1. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from direct discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes
those with a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access
to and within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable
adjustment can be incorporated with relative ease.  The Act states that service providers
should think ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

2. Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and
a term contract planned for their maintenance.

3. Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction
loops in different/adjacent areas does not occur.

4. Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to
ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with
epilepsy.

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy.  The applicant will be liable to
pay the Community Infrastructure Levy to the sum of £72,473.54 on commencement of
this development (please note this amount may change on final calculation).  A separate
liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority, however you are advised
that it is your responsibility to notify the Local Planning Authority of the anticipated
commencement date and any changes in liability through submission of the appropriate
forms.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 28



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Stockley Park Arena was designed as the landmark core of Stockley Park.  To the south,
the site is adjoined by a lake, and to the north and east by the Stockley Golf Course,
including the club house and its car parking area.

The current Stockley Arena premises, which were built in 1990 by Arup, include serviced
office spaces, gym facilities, cafes, a bar and a launderette. As the surrounding areas of
the business park have evolved, Stockley Park Arena has stayed virtually unchanged. The
building benefits from a low key design, typical of its time, set in a prominent but sensitive
setting by the open water lake.  The site is located within the Greenbelt, additionally it is
listed locally as being of historical/architectural merit.

The planning history relevant to this portion of Stockley Park is listed above.  Stockley
Park as a whole was granted planning permission in 1984.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for development of Stockley Arena to provide
additional office accommodation, including a single-storey extension to the central rotunda
and to the southern wing to create a new second floor, together with a two-storey
extension above the existing refuse storage and deliveries area to the north.

The proposal will create 2305sqm of gross external new office floorspace (Use Class B1)
through an extension of the Stockley Arena building at ground and first floor levels and the
addition of a third storey.  The overall key design impact will therefore be to raise the
general building height from 2 to 3 storeys in a protected Green Belt location.

The additional gross internal floor area created would be 2080sqm, made up of 250sqm at
ground floor level, 410sqm at first floor level, and 1420sqm in the new second floor.  The
small area of ground and first floor accommodation is located to the north west of the
adjacent to the existing health club, and over the existing service area.  The larger area at
second floor represents the erection of a new floor at roof level over the existing
accommodation.  Additional landscaping and tree planting is proposed around the car
park and to the north east of the building.

37800/86/1390

37800/APP/2010/1669

Stockley Park Central Leisure & Amnty Bl Stockley Road West Drayto

The Arena, Stockley Park Stockley Road West Drayton 

Details of Central Leisure & Amenity buildings in compliance with outline planning permission
ref. 27951B/81/1955 dated 20.12.84

Change of use from Class B1 (Office) to Class D1 (Non-residential institutions) for use as
further education college and management training premises.

14-11-1986

08-02-2011

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 29



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI2

PT1.E1

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM2

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM8

PT1.EM11

PT1.HE1

PT1.T1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Leisure and Recreation

(2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Heritage

(2012) Accessible Local Destinations

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM2

AM7

AM9

AM13

AM14

AM15

BE8

BE12

BE13

BE15

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Part 2 Policies:

Page 30



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE18

BE38

LE1

OE1

OE7

OE8

OE11

OL1

OL2

OL4

OL5

>>

LPP 2.6

LPP 2.7

LPP 2.8

LPP 4.1

LPP 4.2

LPP 4.3

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.2

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.11

LPP 5.12

LPP 6.1

LPP 6.3

LPP 6.9

LPP 6.10

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.16

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

London Plan (2011) Policies

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Outer London: economy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Developing London's economy

(2011) Offices

(2011) Mixed use development and offices

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Green roofs and development site environs

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Walking

(2011) Parking

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Architecture

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2011) Green Belt

Page 31



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable23rd April 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable23rd April 20135.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 11 local owner/occupiers on 27/03/2013.  The application was also
advertised by way of site and press notices.  No responses were received.

GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY:

London Plan policies on Green Belt, heritage, economic development, urban design, inclusive
access, sustainable development and transport are relevant to this application. The application
complies with some of these policies, but not with others, for the following reasons:

- Green Belt: The applicant should respond to the issues raised in the urban design section of this
report to ensure that the impact on Green Belt openness would be suitably minimised and mitigated
in accordance with London Plan Policy 7.16.

- Heritage: The proposed alterations to the locally listed Arena building do not raise a strategic
objection with respect to London Plan policies 7.8 and 7.9.

- Economic development: The proposed serviced office space is supported in accordance with the
aims of London Plan policies 4.1 and 4.2.

- Urban design: The applicant should respond to the detailed comments within the urban design
and sustainable development sections of this report, in order to ensure that this scheme would
appropriately respond to its Green Belt setting in accordance with London Plan policies 7.1, 7.16
and 7.21.

- Inclusive access: The proposed response to access and inclusion is broadly supported in
accordance with London Plan Policy 7.2.

- Sustainable development: The proposed energy strategy is broadly supported in accordance with
London Plan Policy 5.2, however, the applicant is encouraged to explore further options for district
networking in accordance with the aims of London Plan Policy 5.6.  With respect to climate change
adaptation, the applicant should incorporate urban greening, biodiversity and sustainable urban
drainage measures to ensure accordance with London Plan policies 5.10, 5.11, 5.13, 7.19 and
7.21.

- Transport: Whilst the application is broadly supported is strategic transport terms, further
discussion, clarification and/or commitments are sought with respect to cycle parking; bus stops;
construction, delivery and servicing; and, travel planning, to ensure accordance with London Plan
policies 6.3, 6.7, 6.9, 6.14 and 7.26.

Whilst the proposed employment space is supported, the proposed development does not yet
comply with the London Plan. However, the resolution of the above issues could lead to the
application becoming compliant with the London Plan.

Following these comments, the applicant provided revised details to the GLA, who then provided
the following comments:

Page 32



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Green Belt/Urban design
The proposed introduction of additional tree planting (within the North Wing car parking area, and
the managed grass area to the east of the Arena), is strongly supported in response to the Mayor's
initial representations. GLA officers are now content that the proposed response to the Green Belt
setting is acceptable in strategic planning terms.

Sustainable development (energy)
Upon review of the applicant's response to the energy issues identified at consultation stage, it is
accepted that: (a) there is no non-seasonal waste heat source available from other buildings in the
vicinity that could be used to provide heat for space heating or hot water; and, (b) to connect the
proposed development to the Stockley Park Phase 3 development would require 800m heat main
that would need to cross a major road and is therefore considered non-viable.

It is, nevertheless, noted that the development will be designed to ensure that future connection to
a district heating network would be possible. This is supported, and, where viable, the applicant
should seek to connect to the Stockley Park Phase 3 heat network if/when it is extended beyond
the A408.

Climate change adaptation
As discussed above, the proposed tree planting measures are supported in response to: the Green
Belt setting; and, the proposed loss of five horse chestnut trees. Details of the planting strategy,
and the proposed living roof areas, should be appropriately secured by way of planning
condition/obligation, as appropriate.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:

We object to the proposed development as submitted because there is insufficient information to
demonstrate that the risk of pollution to controlled waters is acceptable. No preliminary risk
assessment report has been submitted with the application documents to assess any potential risk
to groundwater. 

There are two strands to this objection. These are that:

- We consider the level of risk posed by this proposal to be unacceptable. 

- The application fails to provide assurance that the risks of pollution are understood, as a
preliminary risk assessment (including a desk study, conceptual model and initial assessment of
risk) has not been provided.  This proposal requires a proper assessment whenever there is a
potential risk, not only where the risk is known. 

Reason:
The site is underlain by the Lynch Hill Gravel formation which is classed as a Principal Aquifer. 

The applicant should provide information to satisfactorily demonstrate to the local planning
authority that the risk to controlled waters has been fully understood and can be addressed through
appropriate measures. This information should include: a preliminary risk assessment (including a
desk study, conceptual model and initial assessment of risk). 

National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 109 states that the planning system should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and existing
development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely
affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution. Paragraph 120 states that local policies and
decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location, having regard to the
effects of pollution on health or the natural environment, taking account of the potential sensitivity

Page 33



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

of the area or proposed development to adverse effects from pollution. Government policy also
states that planning policies and decisions should also ensure that adequate site investigation
information, prepared by a competent person, is presented (NPPF, paragraph 121).

Officer Comment:
The applicant has stated that they will provide additional information to demonstrate that the
proposal would not cause a risk of pollution and it is considered there are likely to be technical
solutions to address this concern. The recommendation for approval is subject to the Environment
Agency withdrawing their objection.

NATURAL ENGLAND:

Natural England is a non-departmental public body.  Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the
natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future
generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development.

The lack of specific comment from Natural England should not be interpreted as a statement that
there are no impacts on the natural environment, but only that the application is not likely to result
in significant impacts on statutory designated sites, landscapes or species.  It is for the local
authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent with national or local policies on
biodiversity and landscape and other bodies and individuals may be able to help the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) to fully take account of the environmental value of this site in the decision making
process, LPAs should seek the views of their own ecologists when determining the environmental
impacts of this development. 

We would, in any event, expect the LPA to assess and consider the possible impacts resulting from
this proposal on the following issues when determining this application: 

Protected species 
If the LPA is aware of, or representations from other parties highlight the possible presence of a
protected or Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) species on the site, the authority should request survey
information from the applicant before determining the application.  The Government has provided
advice on BAP and protected species and their consideration in the planning system. 

Natural England Standing Advice is available on our website to help local planning authorities better
understand the impact of this particular development on protected or BAP species should they be
identified as an issue at particular developments.  This also sets out when, following receipt of
survey information, the authority should undertake further consultation with Natural England

Local wildlife sites
If the proposal site could result in an impact on a Local Site, Local Nature Reserve (LNR) or priority
habitat the authority should ensure it has sufficient information to fully understand the impact of the
proposal on the local site before it determines the application, ensuring that it does so in conformity
with the wording of paragraph 168 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  For further
information on Local Sites, your authority should seek views from your ecologist, or the Local Sites
designation body in your area.

Biodiversity enhancements 
This application may provide opportunities to incorporate features into the design which are
beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities for bats or the installation of
bird nest boxes.  The authority should consider securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of
the site from the applicant, if it is minded to grant permission for this application.  This is in
accordance with Paragraph 118 of the NPPF.  Additionally, we would draw your attention to Section
40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006) which states that 'Every public

Page 34



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION
The Arena at Stockley Park is a Locally Listed building and the social focus of the park.

The supporting information contained in both the Planning and the Heritage Statement is good in
terms of understanding and explaining the significance of the building.

authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper
exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity'.  Section 40(3) of the same
Act also states that 'conserving biodiversity includes, in relation to a living organism or type of
habitat, restoring or enhancing a population or habitat'. 

Local Landscape 
This proposal does not appear to be either located within, or within the setting of, any nationally
designated landscape.  All proposals however should complement and where possible enhance
local distinctiveness and be guided by your Authority's landscape character assessment where
available, and the policies protecting landscape character in your local plan or development
framework.

Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural
environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006, Natural England should be consulted again.

BAA SAFEGUARDING:

The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and
does not conflict with safeguarding criteria.  We therefore have no objection to this proposal,
subject to an informative regarding cranes.

NATS SAFEGUARDING:

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria.  Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Limited has no safeguarding
objections to this proposal.

THAMES WATER:

Waste Comment:
With regard to surface water drainage, it is the responsibility of a developer to make proper
provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer.  In respect of surface water, it
is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into
the receiving public network through on or off site storage.  When it is proposed to connect to a
combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separated and combined at the final manhole
nearest the boundary.  Connections are not permitted for the removal of ground water.  Where the
developer proposed t discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer
Services will be required.  This is to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not
be detrimental to the existing sewerage system.

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure we would not have any
objection to the above planning application.

Water Comment:
With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water Company.

Page 35



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The revised scheme is a great improvement in design terms on the pre-application proposals and
certainly follows much of the pre-application design advice provided by the Council.

There are still some design improvements that could be made to enable the proposals to be
subservient to the main structure.  If the height were reduced this would prevent the building
appearing too top heavy in long views.

Officer comment:
The additional storey is setback and subservient to the main structure.  The applicant has stated
that the floor to ceiling height to the proposed extension over the existing is currently shown at
2.9m (similar to the existing office spaces) with a 1.1m zone above for structure, roof build up, plant
and parapets.  Within this area is a raised floor for services, therefore the clear free height is
almost at its minimum.  Therefore, any further reduction in service voids is likely to require pipe
work and services to be routed externally, which from many aspects is not desirable, especially
from a visual amenity perspective.  On balance, it is considered that the design as currently
proposed is acceptable.

TREES/LANDSCAPING:

Phase 1 of this award-winning Business Park was built in the 1980's and 90's on land which had
been restored following a history of gravel extraction and subsequent land-filling.  Part of the
success of the development is due to the site master-planning and quality of the landscape setting
which includes formal planting of Lime avenues, Hornbeam hedges and ornamental shrubs
juxtaposed with mixed native woodland and waterside vegetation. The whole is set within sculpted
landforms and a series of lakes, designed to regulate surface and groundwater movement, all
accessed by a network of footpaths and bridges. The surface level landscaped car parks at
Stockley Park are also a signature landscape feature site, due to the successful screening / filtering
of views using swathes of evergreen shrub planting at a lower level with tall hedges of fastigiated
Hornbeam at a higher level. The car park at the Arena is currently one of the less well- screened
car parks, following the selected (authorised) removal of trees from the central landscaped strips
within the car park.  The original density of tree planting was deemed to be compromising the
security of the car park and its users - and thus became a victim of its own success. 

No formal tree survey and assessment (in accordance with BS5837) has been submitted. However,
the Design & Access Statement (1.1.7.2) refers to landscape features and a Visual Impact
Assessment - and pre-application discussions.  While existing soft landscape features at Stockley
Park have been planted and established in accordance with approved plans, they are not protected
by Tree Preservation Order or Conservation Area designation.  The Arena (and much of the
Stockley Park site) lies within the Green Belt. 

The character and visual amenity/appearance of Stockley Park owes much to the high quality of its
developing landscape and maintenance. Trees at, and close to, the Arena should be safeguarded
where their quality, value and useful life expectancy merit retention. 

Considerations:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

- Meld Architects drawing No.198-103 Proposed First Floor Plan confirms that the 5No. Horse
Chestnuts to the north of the Main Entrance will be removed in order to accommodate the north
wing extension. Drawing No. 198-11 Issue P1 Proposed Indicative View Looking from North West
confirms that the loss of this tree group will result in the exposure of a dominant three-storey
facade which will be unrelieved by any foreground planting or landscaped setting.  This is in stark

Page 36



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

contrast to the elevation of the extension above the south wing and the curved wall of the Arena,
views of which are filtered by trees.  This could best be resolved by the re-introduction of trees
within the car park. 

- The Design & Access Statement confirms (1.1.7.2) that, following initial planning advice, the
group of 9No. trees to the north of the health club will be retained as part of the current proposal -
as indicated on drawing No. 198-103 issue P1.

- The Indicative Views provided on drawing Nos. 198-108, 109,110 (all Issue P1), demonstrate
views where the built extensions are either above the existing footprint of the building and / or the
visual impact of the extensions is less significant. 

- Drawing No. 198 - 101 Issue P1 indicates that the north and south wing extensions will have
green / brown roofs.  There can be a significant difference (specification, cost, appearance, use)
between green and brown roofs.  Full details will be required by condition. 

- Landscape conditions will be necessary to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality and to ensure that adequate replacement planting is provided.

Recommendation:
No objection, subject to the above comments.  Agreement should be sought, prior to determination,
about the replacement planting within the car park and the intentions for the green / brown roof. If
this application is to be approved, conditions COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5 and 6) should be imposed.

Revised details have been provided, and as such further comments have been provided:

I have now reviewed the proposals described on the A4 report v.1, dated 11 June 2013 and
illustrated in Quartet design's drawing No.QD645_100-01:

1. The proposed planting in the car park will make a significant beneficial impact on the site,
restoring the car park to its original (landscape) quality with approximately 39No Carpinus betulus
'Frans Fontaine'.

2. The proposal to plant a Birch copse with understorey of wildflower meadow, between the Arena
and the Golf Clubhouse, will also constitute a visual and wildlife enhancement to the site.

These landscape enhancements are to be welcomed and will provide generous mitigation for the
loss of planting necessitated by the proposed development.

If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions are still required in support of
these proposals.

ACCESS OFFICER:

The proposal seeks approval for additional office accommodation within the Arena building above
the existing refuse and delivery area. The multi-purpose Arena building is located between the
Business Park and the golf course. Whilst the park has become an established social and sporting
venue, offering a licenced venue, this is very much seen as ancillary to its core business which is to
provide high quality office space for large corporations.

Whilst the proposal is essentially acceptable form an accessibility point of view, the following points
should be clarified and amendments sought as appropriate:

i) As required by UDP (saved) Policy AM15, 10% of any new parking spaces should be accessible.

Page 37



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

They should be sited within 40m of the entrance, be a minimum of 4.8m x 2.4m and marked and
signed in accordance with BS 8300.

ii) The accessible toilets proposed on the first and second floors should be designed in accordance
with Approved Document M to the Buildings Regulations 2004.

iii) The accessible toilets should be signed either "Accessible WC" or "Unisex".  Alternatively, use of
the International wheelchair symbol and the words "Ladies" and "Gentlemen" or "Unisex" would be
acceptable.

iv) Alarm systems should be designed to allow deaf people to be aware of its activation.  (Such
provisions could include visual fire alarm activation devices, and/or a vibrating pager system.)

v) A refuge area does not appear to be shown on plan.  Advice from an appropriate fire safety
officer or agency should be sought at an early stage to ensure that adequate and appropriate
refuge areas are incorporated into the scheme as a whole.  Refuge areas provided should be sized
and arranged to facilitate manoeuvrability by wheelchair users (Refer to BS 9999: 2008).  Refuge
areas must be adequately signed and accessible communication points should also be provided in
the refuge area.

Recommended Informatives:

1. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
direct discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the
structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease.  The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take
steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

2. Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a term
contract planned for their maintenance.

3. Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops in
different/adjacent areas does not occur.

4. Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected to ensure they
remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with epilepsy. 

Conclusion:
No objection would be raised provided the above access issues are secured by way of a suitable
planning condition attached to any grant of planning permission.

S106 OFFICER:

No S106 contributions are considered to arise from this application with reference to the Council's
SPD for Planning Obligations.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER:

No objection to the proposal, subject to a car parking management plan to ensure the appropriate
allocation and management of the car parking area serving the arena.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 38



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposed use will consist of additional office space to a commercial building.  As
such, the proposal would not significantly alter the character of the uses on the site, and
the use is considered to be a suitable use for a site on the edge of a business park,
subject to the impact of the development on the Green Belt.

The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land
permanently open; the most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness.  Policy
OL1 of the Hillingdon UDP specifies that there is a presumption against inappropriate
development. Policy OL1 states that agriculture, horticulture, nature conservation, open-
air recreation and cemeteries are the only uses that are acceptable within the Green Belt,
and that new buildings are only acceptable if they are essential for the open land use. 

Any development, which is contrary to OL1, is considered 'inappropriate' development.
The NPPF states that 'inappropriate development' is, by definition, harmful to the Green
Belt. Such development should not be approved, except in very special circumstances. 

The NPPF states that 'a local planning authority should regard the construction of new
buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt. Exceptions to this are:

- buildings for agriculture and forestry;
- provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and for
cemeteries, as long as it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict
with the purposes of including land within it;
- the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building;
- the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;
- limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local community needs
under policies set out in the Local Plan; or
- limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites
(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings),
which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the
purpose of including land within it than the existing development.'

The National Planning Policy Framework states 'when considering any planning
application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any
harm to the Green Belt.

The application has outlined that the Business Park overall is now competing to a greater
extent with other Business Parks in the South East/London and to maintain the
competitiveness of the park as a business destination continued investment in the park is
vital.

The exception considered relevant in this instance is 'the extension or alterations of 
a building, provided that it does not result in a disproportionate addition over and above
the size of the original building, will not be considered as inappropriate development within
the Green Belt'.  Also in paragraph 90 it states that 'the reuse of buildings, provided that
they are of permanent and substantial construction, is not inappropriate'.

Furthermore, under Hillingdon UDP Policy OL4 the 'Local Planning Authority will only
permit the replacement or extension of buildings within the Green Belt if:

- The development would not result in any disproportionate change in the bulk or

Page 39



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

character of the original building; 
- The development would not significantly alter the built up appearance of the site. 
- Having regard to the character of the surrounding area the development would not injure
the visual amenities of the green belt be reason of siting, materials, design, traffic or
activities generated.

It is considered that the single storey addition proposed to the Arena Building is
proportionate to the original building and would not significantly impact on the openness or
visual amenities of the Green Belt.  The proposed extension has had extensive input from
the Council's Urban Design Officer.  Officers are satisfied that the scale of the extensions
are appropriate considering their affect on the setting of the locally listed building.
Furthermore, the detailed control of building materials, via condition, will help preserve the
appearance of the building.  There is no additional car parking proposed, therefore
ensuring that there will be minimal change to the existing traffic situation, and no
additional hardstanding would be created.

With regard to the proposed office use, there is already an existing office use within the
building, so the proposal does not seek the introduction of a use that could be considered
harmful or intrusive to the nature of the site.

Whilst it is acknowledged that the development will introduce a larger building into this
setting, which has the potential to detract from the visual amenity and openness of the
Green Belt, the proposal is not considered to be a disproportionate extension to the
existing building, and is therefore not inappropriate development.  It would provide
additional commercial floorspace on the site, with only a minimal increase in overall
building footprint.  The increase in building footprint would be located on existing
hardstanding.  Additional landscaping is proposed to soften the appearance of the site
further and overall is is considered that the proposal would not harm the openness of the
Green Belt.

No residential units are proposed as part of this application.  As such, density is not
relevant to the application.

The site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character or
Archaeological Priority Area, and there are no statutorily Listed Buildings on the site.  The
Arena at Stockley Park is a very important Locally Listed building and the social focus of
the park.

It is considered that the scheme is a great improvement in design terms on the pre-
application proposals and follows much of the design advice provided by the Council. The
Council's Urban Design and Conservation Officer still raises some concerns with minor
detailed aspects of the proposal and these are addressed below.

With regard to concerns relating to the height of the extension and the roof form, the
applicant has stated that the floor to ceiling height to the proposed extension over the
existing is currently shown at 2.9m (similar to existing office spaces) with a 1.1m zone
above for structure, roof build up, plant and parapets. Within this area is a raised floor for
services, therefore the clear free height is almost at its minimum.  Therefore, any further
reduction in service voids is likely to require pipework and services to be routed externally,
which from many aspects is not desirable, especially from a visual amenity perspective.
As such, the additional height is considered acceptable in this instance, as it allows the
plant and ducting to be kept within the building.

Page 40



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

In relation to the Design Officers comment on set back. The second floor is set back from
the main southern frontage of the original building, which is considered satisfactory.  If the
additional floor were to be set back from the other wings, it would result in a poor internal
layout, affecting the usability of the internal office floor space.

Further, officers consider that overall the new addition to the northwest is a complete
structure that would read as an extension to the original building.  As such, it is not
considered that the upper floors need to be set back in this instance.

Therefore, on balance, it is considered that the scheme is designed and laid out in a way
which would not impact on the character and appearance of the building or the heritage of
the borough.

BAA and NATS Safeguarding have reviewed the application and raise no objection to the
application from an airport safeguarding perspective.  As such, it is considered that the
proposal would not impact on the safe operation of any airport.

This has been addressed in section 7.01 of this report.

The NPPF makes it clear that the visual amenities of the Green Belt should not be injured
by proposals for development within or conspicuous from the Green Belt which, although
they would not prejudice the purposes of including land in Green Belts, might be visually
detrimental by reason of their siting, materials or design.

As discussed above, it is acknowledged that the proposal would result in a three-storey
building that would be visible from parts of the Green Belt, however it would be screened
from the wider areas such as Stockley Road by existing landscaping.  In addition, the
wider context of the site adjacent to an IBA, means that large industrial and commercial
buildings are a recognised element of such areas.

Additionally, any loss of the openness will be offset through the provision of further
landscape treatment, to be secured via a condition on any permission. As such, it is
considered that the proposal would not impact on the character or appearance of the
wider area.

The nearest residential properties are located over 100 metres from the northern
boundary of the site.  As such, it is considered that the scheme would not result in any
impacts on the neighbouring properties.

No residential units are proposed as part of this application.  As such, density is not
relevant to the application.

The proposal is not considered to create a significant amount of additional traffic to the
site once it is complete, as the development would not result in the intensification of the
use.  Traffic will be generated while the works are carried out, however, trip number are
likely to be negligible, and is likely to be able to be accommodated within the existing car
parking area on the site.

It is considered that there are no urban design or security issues arising from the

Page 41



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

proposal.  Access is considered in other sections of the report.

The scheme would provide for an accessible building on all floors with the provision of a
DDA compliant lift to access the extensions to the building. Level access is provided from
the new building to the external areas and to the car park. Disabled WC facilities will be
provided and all new doors and finishes will fully comply with Part M of the Building
Regulations. A condition is also proposed to ensure and appropriate fire evacuation plan
is in place. Accordingly the scheme is considered to be consistent with Policies R16 and
AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No residential units are proposed as part of this application.  As such, density is not
relevant to the application.

A number trees in and around the site, including most of those along the site boundaries,
which are particularly important to the visual amenity of the site, would be retained.  It is
necessary to remove a small number of trees adjacent to the entrance of the site to
enable the extension to the northwest of the building.

The majority of the trees to be retained are those along the boundaries of the site.  These
trees will assist in the screening of the building from the wider area.  The proposed tree
planting across the site would be within the car park, which will make a significant
beneficial impact on the site, restoring the car park to its original landscape quality, and to
the northeast of the building, which will constitute a visual and wildlife enhancement to the
site.  These landscape enhancements are to be welcomed and will provide generous
mitigation for the loss of planting necessitated by the proposed development.

It is considered that trees on the site should be protected via condition.  Additional
conditions are also recommended to ensure future landscaping arrangements are
acceptable. Subject to these conditions, it is considered that the proposal which would
achieve appropriate outcomes in terms of policy BE38.

It is considered that the refuse for the development could be dealt with by the existing site
servicing.

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires development proposals to make the
fullest contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions.  Major development schemes
must be accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 25% target
reduction in carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement and a
Sustainability Checklist to demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be met.  In
addition to energy efficient building measures such as ensuring the building is well
insulated, use of under floor heating, energy efficient lighting, energy efficient boiler and
similar, photovoltaic panels would be provided on the roof of the building to provide a
portion of the site's energy needs through the use of a renewable energy.  These
measures would achieve a 25% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions above Part L of the
Building Regulations in compliance with London Plan requirements.

London Plan policy 5.11 states that major development proposals should provide green
roofs.  The development proposes a green/brown roof to the extension.  As such, the
proposed scheme is considered to comply with relevant London Plan policies.

Page 42



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The site does not fall within a flood zone and no issues relating to flooding have been
identified.

London Plan policy 5.13 states that development proposals should use sustainable urban
drainage systems (SUDS) unless there are good reasons for not doing so.  Given the
scale of the development, it is considered that additional water efficiency measures should
be incorporated into the scheme, in accordance with London Plan policy.  This would be
required by way of condition.

Noise:
It is not considered that the proposed development would result in any increased noise
levels over and above the existing use of the site.

Air Quality:
The site falls within Air Quality Management Area and, as such the applicant has
submitted an Air Quality Assessment in support of the application.  This confirms that
existing and proposed pollution levels at the site, after development, fall below current EU
limits.

No public comments have been received.

It is considered that there is no requirement for any obligations as part of this application.

No Enforcement action is required in this instance.

CONTAMINATION
The existing building has been constructed on an area of landfill. Due to the previous use
of the site, it is recommend a condition be imposed on any permission that remediation be
required should any contamination be found during the works.  Also, that no imported soils
be used unless they are free from contamination.  This is to ensure that the proposal
poses an acceptable risk to ground and surface waters and to ensure that any human
health issues are addressed.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

None.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed development is considered to be in keeping with the character and
appearance of the site, and would not have any significant detrimental impact on the
openness of the Green Belt or on the visual amenities of the surrounding area.  It would
not have any significant detrimental impact on the amenity of the nearest residential
occupants and would not result in such an increase in traffic or parking demand such that
it would have an unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network sufficient to justify
refusal.

Page 43



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposal will achieve high levels of accessibility
and London Plan standards relating to sustainability and carbon reductions have been
achieved.

In view of the above, the proposal is considered to comply with relevant national, regional
and local planning policy and, as such, approval is recommended, subject to referral of
the application to the Mayor of London.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Adam Flynn 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 44



FB

1

El

Lake

Sub Sta
Pond

BENNETSFIELD ROAD

1

Hors
e Ride

Shelter

Club House

Pond

Lake

2

O
U

N
D

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

El Sub Sta

Pond

FB

Waterview House

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

The Arena, Stockley Park
Stockley Road
West Drayton

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:2,000

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

37800/APP/2013/161

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

KNIGHTS OF HILLINGDON FLORISTS UXBRIDGE ROAD HILLINGDON 

"Retrospective planning application to vary condition 4 (that the development
hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans) to outline planning permission (Ref 15407/APP/2009/1838)
granted on appeal on 17 June 2010 for the "erection of new health centre
and 12 residential units with ancillary car parking and landscaped amenity
space" to seek retain the building as built including divergences from the
approved scheme in respect to the roof profile that serves the lift shaft on the
rear elevation of the building, the disabled car parking provision and the level
access provided to the building entrance involving the introduction of a
'bridge structure' over a void adjacent to the rear elevation.

08/05/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 15407/APP/2013/1170

Drawing Nos: 1021-P-302
1021-P-303
1021-P-304
1021-P-305
1021-P-311
1021-P-312
1021-P-300
1021-P-312
1021-P-301
1021-P-310

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application is a retrospective application that seeks to regularise the built out
scheme that has departed from the approved scheme (Ref 15407/APP/2009/1838) by
varying condition 4 (that the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the following approved plans).  The current scheme retains the ground
floor function for a medical centre (albeit to date the works on site to facilitate this aspect
of the approved scheme are limited, with no internal fit out).  At least 1 of the residential
units is already occupied.

The completed scheme departs from the approved drawings in a number of respects.
The main departures are:- 
(i) The lift tower which is taller in height and width and differs in profile and finish
treatment;
(ii) A roof form with a larger expanse of crown roof and with 3 additional rooflights (not
previously approved), and 2 other rooflights larger in surface area than were previously
approved;
(iii) The loss of the direct level pedestrian access from the residential stairwell/lift tower to
De Sallis Road;
(iv) The loss of 2 disabled car parking bays at ground level, that were intended for the
medical centre.
(v) Additional Juliette balconies on the rear elevation.

23/05/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

This current partly built out scheme is considered to fail to comply with relevant planning
policies resulting from (a) the lack of disabled car parking provision for the medical centre
and (b) the introduction of a discordant and incongruous appearance to the lift tower,
arising from the cumulative impact of its finish height set above the main roof, its width,
its roof profile and the finish treatment. As such the scheme is recommended for refusal.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to provide adequate in number or useable disabled car parking bays to
the medical centre (D1 use) or demonstrate satisfactory level pedestrian access to the
residential development from the street contrary to Part One Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One (November 2012), the Council's adopted parking standards,
Policies R16, AM13, AM14, AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), Hillingdon's adopted HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon'
Supplementary Planning Document (May 2013), London Plan Policies 6.2 and 7.2 and
Section 4.4.3 of British standard 8300:2009.

The lift tower, as built and shown on proposed plans fails to be a subservient, represent a
discordant and incongruous element that would detract from the appearance of the
development and the genera; character and visual amenity of De Salis Road.  As such it
is considered this aspect of the scheme is contrary to Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One
(November 2012) Policy BE1,  Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5  and 7.4 of the London Plan and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts

The proposed development fails to provide convenient and accessible refuse and
recycling facilities to occupants of the residential units contrary to Policies R16 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Hillingdon's
adopted HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon' Supplementary Planning Document (May 2013),
London Plan Policy  5.17 and paragraph 6.8.9 of Manual for Streets

The applicant has failed to provide a contribution towards the improvement of health,
education and library facilities.  The proposal therefore conflicts with R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.17 and
3.18 the London Plan and the London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Document.

1

2

3

4

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 48



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3

4

5

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Prior to any future re-submission for a revised scheme the applicant is urged to review
the practical capacity of the built-in and recycling storage facilities to the scheme.

Prior to any future re-submission a scaled plan should be submitted of the basement
providing accurate details of the car parking bay layout showing all the supporting
structural roof pillars that as built presently impede the car parking bays meeting the
Council's space standards and which represent a departure from the previously approved
basement car parking plan.

The owner should note the satellite dish and radio antennae fails to comply with
permitted development contract to Part 25 Class Condition B.2 (a)  "The antenna shall,
so far as is practicable, be sited so as to minimise its effect on the external appearance
of the building or structure on which it is installed". Failure to relocate the dish and

BE13
BE15
BE19

BE20
AM7
AM13

AM14
AM15
OE1

MIN16

R16

LPP 3.5
LPP 5.17
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
NPPF
SPG

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Waste recycling and disposal - encouragement of efficient and
environmentally acceptable facilities
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
(2011) Quality and design of housing developments
(2011) Waste capacity
(2011) Parking
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Local character

Residential layouts and house design.

Page 49



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises the former Knights of Hillingdon (Florists), located on the
corner of De Salis Road and Uxbridge Road. The site previously contained a three storey
detached florist building with four flats above, and a plant nursery to the rear.

The site is 0.0962 hectares in area and is bordered by residential properties to the north
and east of De Salis Road. Hillingdon Heath forms an area of open space directly to the
east of the site and a three-storey office building known as Milupa House is located to the
west

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The approved outline planning permission was granted on Appeal at 17 June 2010 (Ref
15407/APP/2009/1838) with landscaping the only Reserved Matter (that has been
subsequently approved Ref 15407/APP/2010/2209) and is for a 246 sq.m ground floor
medical centre and 12 residential units comprising 8 x 2 bed and 4 x 1 bed units. The
scheme provided 20 off street car parking spaces, 18 located within a basement car park
and with 2 surface level car parking bays intended for the medical centre (with a 3rd
disabled car parking bay for the residential accommodation provided in the basement car
park). The approved scheme provided pedestrian access to the health centre via Uxbridge
Road, whereas level pedestrian access to the residential accommodation was via De Sails
Road.

This current part retrospective application seeks no alterations to the number of
residential units or to the number of bedrooms to each flat. The scheme involves minimal
non-material changes to the internal layout of the residential flats and to the unbuilt out
medical centre located at the ground floor.

The original ground level to maximum roof height of the built out scheme is within
approximately 150mm of the approved scheme and the total footprint of the scheme is
within 2sq.m of the approved scheme (notwithstanding the omission of the 2 disabled bay
'undercroft' parking bays.

The main external departures from the approved scheme as identified from the submitted
drawings are:

1)  The lift tower sitting flush with the surrounding wall as opposed to sitting proud of the
rest of the rear wall of the scheme (thus not appearing as a distinct element as viewed in
elevation);

2) The lift tower not being subservient (i.e. lower to the main roof of the building) with the
lift tower roof serving the overrun with it rising 250mm above the top of the main crown
roof to the building, as opposed to set down 500mm with a hipped roof form on the
approved scheme. 

3) The lift tower not having a rusticated finish treatment, as previously approved. 

antennae to minimise the impact on the external appearance will necessitate
investigation from the Planning Enforcement Team to seek its removal.    Relocation onto
the middle of the crown roof is liable to address this matter.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 50



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(4) The lift tower measured at eaves height departing from the approved drawings by
being approximately 1.2m wider and with a more bulky roof form capping the lift tower. 

5) The omission of the 2 ground level external disabled parking bays that were approved
as recessed features in the rear elevation;

6) The omission of level pedestrian access to the flats from De Salis Road, with a
substitute level pedestrian route (to date not built) proposed involving access from the
front (Uxbridge Road) down the west flank side of the building then via a pedestrian bridge
structure to the rear entrance door and lift to the residential component.

7) Three additional roof lights on the rear roof slope, plus the 2 roof lights in the flank roof
slope fasing towards Milupa House (an office block) being larger than was previously
approved.

8)  Additional Juliette balconies (purely decorative not capable of standing upon) to the
obscured glazed window in the rear elevation.

15407/APP/2009/1838

15407/APP/2010/1984

15407/APP/2010/2129

15407/APP/2010/2209

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units with ancillary car parking and landscaped
amenity space (involving demolition of existing building) (Outline application for approval of
access, appearance, layout and scale.)

Details pursuant to Condition 10 (Site Contamination) of the Secretary of State's Appeal
Decision ref: APP/R5510/A/09/2119085 dated 17/06/2010 (LBH ref: 15407/APP/2009/1838):
Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units with ancillary car parking and landscaped
amenity space (involving demolition of existing building) (Outline application for approval of
access, appearance, layout and scale.)

Details in compliance with Conditions 9 (Cycle storage), 15 (Traffic arrangements) and 19
(Construction Management Plan) of the Secretary of State's Appeal Decision ref:
APP/R5510/A/09/2119085 dated 17/06/2010: Erection of new health centre and 12 residential
units with ancillary car parking and landscaped amenity space (involving demolition of existing
building) (Outline application for approval of access, appearance, layout and scale.)

Reserved matters (landscaping) in compliance with condition 2 of the Secretary of State's
Appeal Decision ref:APP/R5510/A/09/2119085 dated 17/06/2010 (LBH
ref:15407/APP/2009/1838): Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units with ancillary
car parking and landscaped amenity space (involving demolition of existing building).

25-11-2009

18-05-2012

28-03-2011

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

AllowedAppeal: 17-06-2010

Page 51



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Relevant planning history provided above in section 3.2

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

15407/APP/2010/2436

15407/APP/2010/2445

15407/APP/2010/2542

15407/APP/2013/972

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Knights Of Hillingdon Florists Uxbridge Road Hillingdon 

Details in compliance with conditions 5 (Ground Levels) and 16 (Energy Efficiency) of the
Secretary of State's Appeal Decision ref: APP/R5510/A/09/2119085 dated 17/06/2010 (LBH ref:
15407/APP/2009/1838): Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units with ancillary car
parking and landscaped amenity space (involving demolition of existing building) (Outline
application for approval of access, appearance, layout and scale.)

Details in compliance with condition 6 (materials) and 11 (Secured by Design) of the Secretary
of State's Appeal Decision ref: APP/R5510/A/09/2119085 dated 17/06/2010 (LBH ref:
15407/APP/2009/1838 dated 28/08/2009): Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units
with ancillary car parking and landscaped amenity space (involving demolition of existing
building) (Outline application for approval of access, appearance, layout and scale.)

Details in compliance of Conditions 7 (balconies) and 20 (basement access ramp) of the
Secretary of State's Appeal Decision Ref: APP/R5510/A/09/ 2119085 dated 17/06/2010:
Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units with ancillary car parking and landscaped
amenity space (involving demolition of existing building) (Outline application for approval of
access, appearance, layout and scale.)

Details in compliance with conditions 17  (Sustainable Urban Drainage) of the Secretary of
State's Appeal Decision ref: APP/R5510/A/09/2119085 dated 17/06/2010 (LBH ref:
15407/APP/2009/1838): Erection of new health centre and 12 residential units with ancillary car
parking and landscaped amenity space (involving demolition of existing building) (Outline
application for approval of access, appearance, layout and scale.)

09-01-2013

28-03-2011

03-06-2011

19-01-2011

10-06-2013

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 52



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

AM7

AM13

AM14

AM15

OE1

MIN16

R16

LPP 3.5

LPP 5.17

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

NPPF

SPG

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Waste recycling and disposal - encouragement of efficient and environmentally
acceptable facilities

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Waste capacity

(2011) Parking

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Local character

Residential layouts and house design.

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable2nd July 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was advertised in a local paper, a site notice was posted and 80 neighbouring
owner/occupiers were consulted on the proposal.

Page 53



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

INTERNAL:

ACCESS OFFICER:

There appears to be no changes to the front elevation affecting accessibility when comparing the
plans approved at appeal and the plans pertaining to this retrospective planning application.
Ramped access was approved for the front entrance, and the latest plans appear to show identical
specifications.

In terms of access to the accessible parking spaces and the amenity area at the rear, changes are
noted. The plans approved at appeal show a gradient of 1:20 from the accessible parking spaces
to a level entrance that leads into the building. A similar arrangement was to be provided from the
rear entrance down to the amenity area via a ramp descending to the north-west boundary. It is
considered that this would have achieved an acceptable standard of access had it been possible to
construct.

However, given the differences in level at the rear, it has proven not possible to achieve the desired
gradient leading from the accessible car parking to the building's rear entrance.  The retrospective
plans of the building, as constructed, show that the surface level accessible parking bays, included
as part of the approved scheme, have been omitted. Given the building's ground floor was
approved as a medical centre, accessible parking is considered to be paramount to ensure that the
principles of inclusion can be achieved.

Any vehicle height barrier should provide a vertical clearance on level ground of 2.6 m from the

Two written responses were received. Both were letters of objection. The concerns raised can be
summarised as follows:

1) Surely the development was subject to regular reviews to ensure the building was erected in
accordance with the strict terms and conditions as stipulated by the Secretary of State. In view of
the breaches presented to original planning terms, should the matter not be referred back to the
secretary of state to deal with?

2) The residents remain seriously concerned that the ground floor will not be used as a medical
centre and we need reassurances that no change of use will be permitted for the ground floor area.

3) The developer, at original planning was adamant that a medical centre was planned and it was
on this basis that an overdevelopment of the site was approved by the Secretary of State. 

4) We are looking for the support of the council and secretary of state to protect the interests of the
residents here as we remain very concerned regarding not only the blatant breaches to planning
which have occurred but also to what is happening to the ground floor. 

5) Strict actions need to be taken here to combat the ongoing issues at the site. 

6) There are no plans showing parking space relocation or whether all 18 planned parking spaces
are still available, i.e. where are the 6 medical centre spaces and are there still sufficient disabled
parking spaces? If they are not available, road parking will be a problem.

7) Wheelchair residents will have to travel right round the outside of the building to access the bin
store, which is not really acceptable. If there is a basement fire, wheelchair residents will have to
cross the basement entrance and may be exposed to risk of harm - smoke and/or flame

Page 54



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

carriageway to allow the passage of a high-top conversion vehicle. Alternatively, a facility should
exist whereby the user of a high-top conversion can make arrangements to pass through the
barrier.

The vertical clearance of 2.6 m should be maintained from the entrance of the car park to (and
including) the designated parking spaces and exits from those spaces. The effect of driving a long
wheelbase vehicle over any humps or onto a slope should be taken into account when checking the
effective vertical clearance.  Height restrictions should be clearly signposted, at a point before
drivers begin to enter the car park. For existing car parks, if it is not feasible to maintain the
recommended vertical clearance along the route, there should be directions to suitable alternative
designated parking spaces.

Hillingdon's adopted 'Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document specifies a high
clearance for car parking in 'public' environments, however, within the housing section, it does ask
for a minimum of 2.2 m.  The two ground level parking spaces originally shown, were logically
allocated to the medical centre. There is every likelihood that disabled people with complex
impairments would visit a medical centre, and many of those would arrive in a semi-hightop vehicle
which could not be accommodated in a more standard 2.2 m high car park.

The ramp bridge leading from the rear entrance to the amenity area should provide a minimum
ramp surface width of 1.5 m. Drawing No: 1021-P-310 indicates that the ramp surface is
approximately 1 m wide, which would be unacceptable in planning terms, even if Building
Regulations have been satisfied.

Provided the following two provisions can be clarified and are found to be acceptable following re-
evaluation, no objection would be raised from an accessibility standpoint:

1. The development, as constructed, shall provide a minimum of 10% accessible parking bays in
accordance with policy AM15 (Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies). If these are to be provided
within the basement car park, the parking area should ensure a minimum height clearance of 2.6 m
to cater for high sided accessible vehicles. The parking should rightly be provided at surface level
to ensure that the development concurs with inclusive design principles.

2. The bridge link ramp must comply with Approved Document M to the building regulations, and
confirmation of the same should be submitted to ensure the correct width, gradient and flight
length.

Conclusion: no objection would be raised provided the issues raised in points one and two above
can be confirmed as acceptable.

URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

Having considered the structure as built, there are some differences from the approved plans.
Some, such as the window proportions and detailing appear to be an improvement on the agreed
scheme and the changes to the roof form appear to make very little difference to the overall
appearance of the building. The lift enclosure as built, however, is taller and generally more bulky in
appearance than that approved. It appears as a visually discordant element and poorly integrated
with the architecture of the rear elevation. It could, however, be improved if it were clad vertically
(covering the same area as the original rustication), perhaps with panelling in a grey colour, to
break up its bulk. This could also be integrated with a better detailed entrance foyer and a larger
canopy, which would create a feature at ground floor and draw the eye from the lift enclosure
above.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

Page 55



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The principle of the development has been previously established, as evidenced with the
original approved scheme (15407/APP/2009/1838).

The density of the residential scheme has already been established and this revised
scheme has no impact upon aspect of the scheme.

The site does not lie in proximity to any listed buildings, a conservation area, or an area of
Special Local Character. The site is also not located within an archaeological priority area.

Not applicable to this variation of condition application.

The site is not located in proximity to any land designated as Green Belt.

Not applicable to this variation of condition application.

Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) requires that new development within residential areas complement the
character and appearance of the area.

The scheme provides inadequate disabled car parking provision to the Medical Centre (D1).
Although no Transport Statement accompanies this current application, the Transport Statement
submitted with the original approval (5407/APP/2009/1838) provided for 20 parking spaces in total,
allocating 11 car spaces for the residential units and 9 spaces for the medical centre. This  included
3 disabled car parking spaces, 2 of which would be on the ground floor.

The above mentioned Transport Statement considered peak demand for a medical clinic of 7 car
parking bays and 9 for a GP surgery. This assessment of the necessary parking provision was
accepted as satisfactory by the Council's Highway Engineer at the time of the originl application
and subsequently by the Planning Inspector.

Notwithstanding the car parking provision for the D1 Use would short fall by 2 car parking spaces,
as assessed for a  GP surgery (as opposed to a medical centre), it is not considered this shortfall
provides a reason to object  to the scheme. However, the loss of the two disabled parking bays at
ground floor level for the proposed D1 use remains a cause for concern. It would not be possibe to
provide these at basement level, given the inadequate head height into the basement car park
(minimum 2.6m required and approximately 2.2m clearance provided). The proposal is therefore
unacceptable and contrary to relevant planning policy.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS:

There is a Unilateral Undertaking over the land dated 22 February 2010.

If you are minded to approve this scheme then a Deed of Variation to this agreement to align the
new planning reference, if approved. 

Note that to date the Unilateral Undertaking has not been met and the agent and owner have been
contacted to look to rectify this matter, as they are in breach of the Unilateral Undertaking at this
time.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 56



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

There are minimal external alterations to the approved scheme in respect to the front and
side elevations of the scheme. Whilst the finished fenestration arrangement on the
residential upper floors do not accord exactly with the previously approved drawings it is
not considered these changes would have an adverse impact on the architectural integrity
of the scheme or upon the general character and appearance of an area, once the
previously approved balconies and Juliet balconies are in situ. 

In terms of the general main roof the departures from the approved scheme are more
significant with additional roof light windows and a larger expanse of raised [crown] flat
roof. Nevertheless, these departures when viewed on site and as reflected in this current
application, are not considered to provide any undue adverse impact in terms of the
overall bulk of the roof form as viewed from the 2 adjacent streets to the site and therfore
do not provide a reason for refusal.

The approved scheme contained a lift tower with a its well proportioned width, part
rusticated finish treatmenta and a roof profile (set 500mm below the main roof of the
development), that combined to provide a building element that 'read' harmoniously and
subserviently with the remainder of the back elevation of the approved scheme. 

The current scheme (as built and shown on the submitted drawings) provides a lift tower
of greater width, capped with a heavier roof form, and of greater overall height (siting
250mm above the main roof of the development) and without a rusticated finish treatment
compared to the approved scheme.  All these described elements of the built lift tower
combine to produce an incongruous built element that sits uncomfortably on the back
elevation of the scheme and as such fails to be a subservient building feature. This part of
the development therefore detracts from the character and visual amenity of De Salis
Road.  As such it is considered this aspect of the scheme is contrary to Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One (November 2012) Policy BE1,  Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5  and 7.4 of the
London Plan and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.

The 3 additional and 2 larger roof lights situated in the roof slopes (compared to the
approved scheme) are all contained within roof slopes which have approved roof lights.
The additional roof lights are not set nearer to neighbouring proprties than the prevouslly
approved roof lights. Therefore these deviations from the approved scheme are not
considered to have any adverse impact to neighbours.

The alterations to the scheme involve minimal changes to the internal layout of the
individual residential flats. 

As such the scheme retains appropriate living conditions for future occupiers that accord
with relevant Council planning policies, Supplementary Planning Guidance and the
London Plan.

The matter of disabled car parking provision is dealt with in section 7.12 of the report.
However the loss of 2 car parking bays allocated for disabled use from the scheme is not
considered by the Highway Engineer to warrant an additional reason of refusal in respect
to an unacceptable stress being placed to on street car parking on the surrounding road
network.

Page 57



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12 Disabled access

URBAN DESIGN: Dealt with in section 7.07 of the report.

ACCESS: Dealt with in section  7.12 of the report.

SECURITY: The proposed alterations within this scheme, from the approved scheme,
raise no undue adverse security issues notwithstanding the requirement for pedestrians
who require level access to the residential component from the street would have to walk
down the 'blank' flank west elevation of the wall.

Planning Policies R16, AM13 and AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) are relevant to consideration of disabled access to the
scheme and their content are laid out below:

Policy R16 states "The local planning authority will only permit proposals for shops,
business uses, services, community and other facilities open to the public if they include
adequate provision for accessibility, in particular those of elderly people, people with
disabilities, women and children where appropriate to the scale and nature of the
development proposed, new development should include:- 

(i) safe and convenient access by public and private transport and on foot; 

(ii) safe and convenient means of physical access to all floors; 

(iii) facilities for child and baby care accessible for male and  female carers; and 

(iv) toilets accessible to people with disabilities;

(v) and have regard to the measures set out in policies AM13 and R17."

Policy AM13 "The local planning authority will seek to ensure that proposals for
development increase ease and spontaneity of  movement for elderly people, the frail and
people with disabilities."

Policy AM15 stares "All car parks provided for new development shall contain
conveniently located reserved spaces for disabled persons in accordance with the
council's adopted car parking standards".

The current scheme differs from the approved scheme in 3 key aspects in respect to the
general accessibility of the scheme arising from:
(a) the omission of  2 accessible car parking bays located at ground level intended for the
medical centre and
(b) the loss of the direct level pedestrian access from the residential stairwell/lift tower to
De Sallis Road. 
c) The scheme lacks convenient pedestrian access to the refuse bins from the entrance to
the residential development. There is a walk of approximately 60 metres for occupants of
the residential units, including wheelchair users.

The omission of the 2 car (previously approved) accessible car parking bays leaves the
current scheme with only 1 accessible car parking bay, located in the basement car park.
As built the basement provides approximately 2.2m vertical clearance for vehicles to enter
into the basement car parking. This clearance height is not consistent with standards for
accessible car parking provision within residential units. 

Page 58



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

However for schemes serving a general public use facility, such as a D1 medical centre,
both the relevant British Standard 8300:2009 (section 4.4.3)  and the Council's own
adopted "Accessible Hillingdon" Supplementary Planning Document  require vertical
clearance of 2.6m to meet the needs of high sided cars designed for holding a wheelchair.
 Without the necessary 2.6m vertical clearance, the basement car park fails to offer an
opportunity to serve as an acceptable substitute location for the accessible car parking to
meet the needs of a medical centre.  Therefore the scheme fails to comply with the
relevant planning policies.

In the absence of direct pedestrian level access from the door entrance to De Salis Road
(as previously approved) the current scheme proposes an alternative  level access route,
which is more circuitous, and is from Uxbridge Road involving a 'bridge link to the rear of
the building over a vehicle ramp, serving the basement car park.  The submitted drawing
shows the bridge link as being approximately 1m wide, which is not consistent with either
Part M (accessibility) of the Building Regulations or with the Council's Adopted Accessible
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document. 

The scheme demands residents who require level access to walk over 50 metres, around
3 sides of the building, from the residential entrance door to the communal refuse and
recycling store.  The proposed route for wheelchair occupiers and other residents with
mobility issues to reach the residential bin store would be excessive and is unacceptable,
contrary to Section 6.8.9 of Manual for Streets and Policy 5.17 of the London Plan. 

Accordingly in view of the above considerations the scheme fails to comply with Policies
R16, AM13, AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), London Plan Policies 5.17, 6.2 and 7.2 and is also not consistent with current
equalities legislation ((Equalities Act 2010) or Paragraph 6.8.9 of Manual for Streets.

Not applicable as this current scheme involves no changes in this respect from the
aproved scheme, namely no provision of affordable housing required.

Not applicable as the current scheme involves no alterations to the approved landscaping
scheme for the site and which is controlled by planning condition.

Policy 5.16 of the London Plan requires that all new development provide adequate space
for the storage of waste and recycling.

The previously approved scheme incorporate two integrated bin stores accessed from De
Salis Road of approximately 60sqm in total floor area, that allows one to be provided for
the medical centre and the other for the residential units each with capacity to store four
1100 litre bins, each with level access to the street. 

The current scheme slight relocates the 2 integrated bin stores, they would retain level
access to the street of approximately and have a net floor of approximately 54 sqm
providing space for four 1100 litre bins in one unit and two 1100 litre bins in the other. 

The reduction in the waste provision is not ideal, however the Council has no policies or
guidance relating to the number of bins required for non residential users and it is
generally for commercial occupiers to meet their needs through a combination of storage
capacity and  collection frequency. Accordingly it is not considered this change is
sufficient to warrant refusal. However an informative is added encouraging the applicant to

Page 59



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

review the refuse provision.

Not applicable to this variation of condition application.

Not applicable to this variation of condition application.

Not applicable to this variation of condition application.

CASE OFFICE RESPONSE:

With regard to Point 1 the Planning Inspector and Secretary of State do not involve
themselves with breaches of planning control.

With regard to Points 2 and 3 and 4, the observation is noted, however is not material to
this application that would retain the ground floor for medical centre use. Any future
change of use to the ground floor would be the matter of a separate planning application
and would be assessed on its  merits.

With regard to Point 5 the current application follows investigation by the Council's
Planning Enforcement Team.

With regard to Point 6 it is a matter dealt with elsewhere in the body of the report

With regard to Point 7 and the issue of ease of access to the refuse store, this is dealt
with elsewhere in the body of the report. The issue of smoke and fire control is not a
planning consideration but a matter for building control and the London Fire Brigade.

Were the scheme to be approved a Deed of Variation to the existing section 106 would be
required to transfer across the existing legal obligations.

To date the planning obligations have not been met. The financial obligations were due 12
months after the commencement of the scheme. 12 months has lapsed since
commencement of the scheme.

As no legal agrement is in place with respect to the current application and no obligations
have been met the scheme should be refused.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them
tomake an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be awareof
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights
(theConvention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.

Page 60



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a
fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).
Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached. Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not
absolute rights and infringements of these rights protected under these are allowed in
certain defined circumstances, for example where required by law.  However any
infringement must be proportionate, which means it must achieve a fair balance between
the public interest and the private interest infringed and must not go beyond what is
needed to achieve its objective.
Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks to regularise a series of departures from the approve scheme and
which have been built out on site. 

A number of the departures from the approved scheme such as a larger crown roof
containing more roof lights and subtle changes in the treatment of the elevations are not
considered to provide cause for concern in respect to visual amenity, impact upon
neighbours or upon the adequacy of the accommodation/users for future occupants of the
scheme. However, there are 3 aspects of the current proposed scheme (as built) that are
considered unacceptable and contrary to adopted planning policy and guidance, namely 
(i) the external appearance of the lift tower that represents an incongruous element
detrimental to the appearance of the building and the general character of the area, 
(ii) the failure to provide useable level pedestrian access to the residential flat from the
street and 
(iii) the failure to provide any accessible car parking provision for the D1 use. As such the
scheme is sub-standard, contrary to relevant planning policies and therefore
recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon's HDAS 'Residential Layout' Supplementary Planning Document (July 2006)
Hillingdon's HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon' Supplementary Planning Document (May 2013)
British standard 8300:2009
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
Manual for Streets

Gareth Gwynne 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 61



D Fn

N
E

W
 R

O
A

D

9

24

21

18
a

UXBRIDGE ROAD

13

R
os

en
ga

rt
en

23

2

36

7

35

South

45.4m
Hillingdon Heath

6

PA
G

E
T

 R
O

A
D

D
E

 S
A

LIS
 R

O
A

D

21

2

Playground

12

Knights Gardens

945

1

17

31 to 42

59

1

1

30

17

G
or

ra
n

Lodge

12

12

18

R
U

S
S

E
T

 C
L

O
S

E

44.2m

20 19

17

Sta

22

C
im

ar
on

92
9

FU
LH

A
M

 C
LO

S
E

919

925

El

94
1

2

Sub

22 Church

ddiscombe Court

8

47

1

H
E

W
E

N
S

 R
O

A
D

943

927
1390

Pp

Connaught Heights

1 t0 48

2c

Ward Bdy

B
oro C

onst &
 W

ard B
dy

CR

C
R

921 to
923

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Knights of Hillingdon Florists
Uxbridge Road

Hillingdon

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

15407/APP/2013/1170

Page 62



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

FORMER RAF UXBRIDGE  HILLINGDON ROAD UXBRIDGE 

Reserved matters (appearance, layout, scale and landscaping) in compliance
with conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 1, Seventh Application (Eastern Side of
District Park) of planning permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated
18/01/2012 for the proposed mixed-use redevelopment of St Andrews Park
(Former RAF Uxbridge site).

18/04/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 585/APP/2013/979

Drawing Nos: 2152-DP-LA-01 Rev C
2152-DP-LA-05
2152-DP-DT-02 Rev A
2152-DP-DT-03 Rev B
2152-DP-TS-01 Rev A
2152-IM-04 Rev A
Design and Access Statement - 2152-DP-DAS-01_LB (March 2013)
Landscape Specification - 2152-DP-SP-01 (March 2013)
Landscape Management Specification - 2152-RE-12 Rev A (April 2013)

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to Layout, Scale,
Appearance and Landscaping for the seventh application of Phase 1 for the creation of
the eastern side of the District Park within the site.

The application site forms part of St Andrews Park (the former RAF Uxbridge Site), for
which outline consent was granted under application reference 585/APP/2009/2752 for a
residential led, mixed-use development.

The Reserved Matters application relates to a 4 hectare plot of land, located to the north
east of the St Andrews Park Site. The application site is bordered by the River Pinn to
the west, and Phases 1A and B to the east.

The District Park is an existing area of open parkland and woodland, bisected by the
River Pinn, and will provide 14 hectares of public open space for residents and visitors.
The park is to be developed in two phases, the first as part of Phase 1 of the
development of the site, and the second as part of Phase 3.  The park as a whole will
provide sports pitches and play opportunities as part of future phases of the
development.

This area of park has been designed in accordance with the parameter plans and
Landscape and Open Space Strategy approved at outline stage. The proposed
landscaping would have a positive impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, in accordance with the vision of the approved design code. Therefore,
it is recommended that the application be approved.

2. RECOMMENDATION

18/04/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 8

Page 63



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM4

COM5

Accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 2152-DP-LA-01 Rev
C, 2152-DP-LA-05, 2152-DP-DT-02 Rev A, 2152-DP-DT-03 Rev B, 2152-DP-TS-01 Rev
A, 2152-IM-04 Rev A, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the specified
supporting plans and/or documents:

Design and Access Statement - 2152-DP-DAS-01_LB (March 2013)
Landscape Specification - 2152-DP-SP-01 (March 2013)
Landscape Management Specification - 2152-RE-12 Rev A (April 2013)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

1

2

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2

AM7
AM8

BE13
BE18

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Page 64



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1 Building to Approved Drawing3

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms part of St Andrews Park (the former RAF Uxbridge Site), for
which outline consent was granted under application reference 585/APP/2009/2752 for a
residential led, mixed-use development.

The Reserved Matters application relates to a 4 hectare plot of land, located to the north
east of the St Andrews Park Site. The application site is bordered by the River Pinn to the
west, and Phases 1A and B to the east.  The District Park is an existing area of open
parkland and woodland, bisected by the River Pinn, and will provide 14 hectares of public
open space for residents and visitors.  The park is to be developed in two phases, the first

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

BE19

BE23
BE38

OE1

OE7

OE8

OL1

OL2
>>
LPP 2.6
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.16
LPP 7.18
LPP 7.21

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
London Plan (2011) Policies
(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation
(strategies) facilities
(2011) Large residential developments
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Strategic Approach
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Walking
(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Local character
(2011) Public realm
(2011) Green Belt
(2011) Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency
(2011) Trees and woodland

Page 65



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

as part of Phase 1 of the development of the site, and the second as part of Phase 3.

The area surrounding the site is predominately residential, both existing and proposed,
and comprises a combination of 3 - 4 storey apartment blocks and two and three storey
terraced and semi-detached housing. 

The site is situated within the Green Belt.

Planning permission was approved on 18th January 2012 under application reference
585/APP/2009/2752 for the following:

1. Outline application (all matters reserved, except for access) including demolition of
some existing buildings and:
a. Creation of up to 1,296 residential dwellings (Class C3) of between 2 to 6 residential
storeys;
b. Creation of up to 77 one-bedroom assisted living retirement accommodation of between
3 to 4 storeys;
c. Creation of a three-form entry primary school of 2 storeys;
d. Creation of a hotel (Class C1) of 5 storeys of up to 90 beds;
e. Creation of a 1,200 seat theatre with ancillary cafe (Sui Generis); office (Class B1a) of
up to 13,860 sq m; in buildings of between 4 to 6 storeys as well as a tower element
associated with the theatre of up to 30m;
f. Creation of a local centre to provide up to 150 sq m of retail (Class A1 and A2) and 225
sq m GP surgery (Class D1); means of access and improvements to pedestrian linkages
to the Uxbridge Town Centre; car parking; provision of public open space including a

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to Layout, Scale,
Appearance and Landscaping for the seventh application of Phase 1 for the creation of
the eastern side of the District Park within the site.

The Reserved Matters application relates to a 4 hectare plot of land, located to the north
east of the St Andrews Park Site. The application site is bordered by the River Pinn to the
west, and Phases 1A and B to the east.

The District Park is an existing area of open parkland and woodland, bisected by the River
Pinn, and will provide 14 hectares of public open space for residents and visitors.  The
park is to be developed in two phases, the first as part of Phase 1 of the development of
the site, and the second as part of Phase 3.  The park as a whole will provide sports
pitches and play opportunities as part of future phases of the development.

The application involves the retention of the naturally terraced open area between
Hillingdon House and the river, with the existing footpaths re-instated.  Also included is
limited new tree planting, the provision of an attenuation basin on the lower slopes of the
grass terrace, with two areas of lower land for temporary localised water storage.
Ecological enhancements, including the creation of log piles and installation of bird and
bat boxes are also proposed.  Street furniture, including interpretation boards, signage,
seating and dog bins would also be installed.  The existing vegetation types are generally
to be retained, with the under storey in the woodland managed and maintained to benefit
wildlife and discourage public access.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 66



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

district park; landscaping; sustainable infrastructure and servicing.

2. In addition to the above, full planning permission for:
a. Creation of 28 residential dwellings (Class C3) to the north of Hillingdon House of
between 2 to 3 storeys as well as associated amenity space and car parking;
b. Change of use of Lawrence House (Building no. 109) to provide 4 dwellings 
(Class C3), associated amenity space and car parking including a separate freestanding
garage;
c. Change of use and alterations to the Carpenters building to provide 1 residential
dwelling (Class C3);
d. Change of use and alterations to the Sick Quarters (Building No. 91) to provide 4
dwellings (Class C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking;
e. Change of use of Mons barrack block (Building No. 146A) to provide 7 dwellings (Class
C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking;
f. Change of use of the Grade II listed former cinema building to provide 600sq m Class
D1/2 use (no building works proposed);
g. Change of use and alterations to the Grade II listed Hillingdon House to provide 600 sq
m for a restaurant (Class A3) on the ground floor and 1,500 sq m of office (Class B1) on
the ground, first and second floors.

Since the approval the applicant has discharged a number of the pre-commencement and
other conditions attached to the permission relating to the application site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI2

PT1.EM2

PT1.EM4

PT1.EM5

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Leisure and Recreation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation

(2012) Sport and Leisure

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Page 67



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.T1 (2012) Accessible Local Destinations

AM2

AM7

AM8

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE23

BE38

OE1

OE7

OE8

OL1

OL2

>>

LPP 2.6

LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 6.1

LPP 6.9

LPP 6.10

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.5

LPP 7.16

LPP 7.18

LPP 7.21

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

London Plan (2011) Policies

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation (strategies)
facilities

(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Walking

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Local character

(2011) Public realm

(2011) Green Belt

(2011) Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency

(2011) Trees and woodland

Part 2 Policies:

Page 68



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable15th May 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable22nd May 20135.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

TREE/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

The Design & Access Statement, by Allen Pyke Associates, describes the District Park and the
design principles and concepts behind the proposed work. The D&AS confirms (3.2) that the
naturally terraced open area between Hillingdon House and the river is to be retained with existing
footpaths re-instated. The existing vegetation types are generally to be retained, with the under
storey in the woodland managed / maintained to benefit wildlife and discourage public access.
Other 'development', described in 3.3, includes:

- limited new tree planting, 
- the provision of an attenuation basin on the lower slopes of the grass terrace, with two areas of

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 58 local owner/occupiers on 24/04/2013.  The application was also
advertised by way of site and press notices.  No responses have been received.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:

Provided that the reserved matters do not impact upon the floodplain compensation storage or the
buffer strip approved under application 585/APP/2009/2752, we have no objections to this
application.

Annex B of the Thames River Basin Management Plan describes the River Pinn as a heavily
modified watercourse and currently at 'moderate' status.  We would welcome bank enhancements
and measures to allow the natural flow of the river to keep the channel clear and maintain a
suitably natural river profile.

Any opportunities to improve the status of the watercourse under the Water Framework Directive
should be explored.  For example we would encourage the removal of artificial bank reinforcements
or structures to help the river return to a more natural state and improve the river habitat as well as
options to further enhance the river corridor, such as backwaters and ponds.

NATURAL ENGLAND:

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the
natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future
generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. Natural England has previously
commented on this proposal and made comments to the authority in our letter dated 01 February
2013.

The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to this application although we made
no objection to the original proposal.

Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural
environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006, Natural England should be consulted again.

Page 69



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

lower land for temporary localised water storage, 
- other ecological enhancements include the creation of log piles and installation of bird and bat
boxes,
- the D&AS includes illustrative details of street furniture, including interpretation boards, signage,
seating and dog bins. These illustrations are not particularly attractive and it is not clear whether
Green Spaces have specified, or approved the use of these products. 

Allen Pyke's drawing No. 2152-DP-LA-01 Rev A, Phase 1 Landscape Proposals provides a plan of
the existing site with the proposed hard and soft landscape features incorporated. 

Allen Pyke's Landscape Specification District Park (District Park, Phase 1) provides detailed
specifications for soft works (planting) using NBS clauses (industry standard). There are no
specification or construction details for the hard landscape details or installations. 

Allen Pyke's Landscape Management Specification (District Park, Phase 1) sets out the general
management objectives for the site (section 3), provides maintenance details (section 4) with
general principles and specific items and lists some specific operations and key operations (section
5). Some specific details have been omitted from section 5,- tree safety inspections, footpath
maintenance (topping up), invasive weed control, litter collection.

The submission is supported by a Tree Constraints Plan, Allen Pyke drawing No. 2152-DP-TS-01
Rev A, a detail of the existing sleeper steps to the Leigh Mallory Bridge, (drawing No. 2152-DP-DT-
02 Rev A), and a Timber Pond dipping Platform and board walk (drawing No. 2152-DP-DT-03 Rev
A).

RECOMMENDATIONS:
- Details of the storm water drainage inlet / outlet between Hillingdon House and the river have yet
to be submitted. This detail should be both functional and of acceptable appearance. Cross-
sections through the adjusted contours and the outlet are required to ensure that the detail is safe
and it's appearance is acceptable. Details of the associated planting should be specified for
approval.

- There is no indication on plan of which invasive weeds are present or where they are, and what
treatment they are undergoing to control them.

- During a pre-application site meeting, discussion took place about the need to paint / restore the
Leigh Mallory Bridge railings. In 3.2 of the D&AS the report states that the bridges fall outside the
scope of this application. Clarification is required regarding how and when this detail will be
addressed.

- The appearance and specification of street furniture and amenities, as illustrated in the D&AS
require is not acceptable. Further consultation with Green Spaces team is required. Product details
/ construction details have yet to be agreed.

- Construction details and specifications are required for the hard landscape works (paths, street
furniture etc). Lighting and signage are indicated on plan although the product details have yet to
be specified. 

- The management / maintenance specification should be more comprehensive. It would be helpful
to have a summary of operations and frequencies in tabular form.

Officer Comment:
Revised details have been received that address the Tree and Landscape Officer's concerns.

Page 70



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The development of the District Park was approved as part of the outline consent for the
redevelopment of St Andrews Park. The park is proposed in accordance with the
approved parameter plan and landscape strategy and no objection is raised to the
principle of the development.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Only minor structures are proposed as part of this development.  As such, no
safeguarding issues would arise.

This portion of the site is located within the Green Belt.  The fundamental aim of the NPPF
is relation to Green Belt is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the
most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness.  Policy OL1 of the Hillingdon
UDP specifies that there is a presumption against inappropriate development.  The
proposed development is not considered inappropriate as it maintains the openness of the
Green Belt and proposes open recreational space.

The application is for works to create a District Park, on the location of a current area of
open space.  As such, no buildings are involved, and the development would therefore not
impact on the openness of the Green Belt.  The works will improve the site, and will
improve the visual amenity of the area.  As the proposal does not involve any buildings,
the development is considered to comply with Green Belt policies.

The District Park is the major component of the green infrastructure of the St Andrews
Park development.  It is an existing open area of open parkland and woodland and would
provide 14 hectares of publicly accessible open space for residents and visitors when
complete.  It is, therefore, considered that the improved landscaping and appearance of
the park would have a positive impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding area, in
accordance with Policies BE13, BE15 & BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

As the application is for the development of a park, the proposed development would
cause no significant harm to residential amenity of the future occupiers of the
neighbouring residential dwellings in terms of loss of light, loss of outlook or sense of
dominance. Therefore, the development is in accordance with Policy BE20 & BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan.

The development would include the erection of various landscape items and street
furniture across the park. However, these are of a small scale, and have been designed to
ensure no impacts occur to any surrounding properties. Therefore, the development is

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN:

No comments to make on the application.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

Floodplain and drainage issues were overcome at the outline application stage.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 71



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

considered to comply with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

Not applicable to this application.

This application seeks reserved matters approval for the district park.  Vehicle access,
parking and pedestrian safety are dealt with in other phases of the site's development.

The design and layout of the park is in accordance with the Design Code approved at
Outline Stage and are considered acceptable in terms of Urban Design.

Access across the park area would be improved with the refurbishment of the existing
path network. No buildings are proposed as part of this application.  As such there are not
considered to be any access issues relating to the proposal.

Not applicable to this application.

The proposal includes the comprehensive landscaping of the park, which is generally in
accordance with the design and landscaping approved as part of the outline permission.
The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer raised some concerns with the details of the
proposal as submitted, however, revised details of these issues have been received,
which satisfy the Officer's concerns.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Flooding and drainage issues were dealt with and overcome as part of the Outline
Planning Permission for the development.

Not applicable to this application.

No comments received.

The planning obligations for the development of the site were secured as part of the
Outline Planning Permission.

Not applicable to this application.

No further issues for consideration.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

None.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

Page 72



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to Layout, Scale,
Appearance and Landscaping for the seventh application of Phase 1 for the creation of
the eastern side of the District Park within the site.

The application site forms part of St Andrews Park (the former RAF Uxbridge Site), for
which outline consent was granted under application reference 585/APP/2009/2752 for a
residential led, mixed-use development.

This area of park has been designed in accordance with the parameter plans and
Landscape and Open Space Strategy approved at outline stage. The proposed
landscaping would have a positive impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, in accordance with the vision of the approved design code. Therefore, it
is recommended that the application be approved.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Adam Flynn 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 73



The Cottage

43

46.0m

13

42

54

2

7

8

8

15

RAF Station

Jupiter

1 
to

 1
2 Heights

36.3m

40

CLOSE

to

9

Y
E

W
 T

R
E

E
 R

O
A

D

12

44.5m

16

1

44.8m

96

24

5

1

ST
 A

N
D

R
E

W
'S

 R
O

A
D

T
C

H
 C

L
O

S
E

7

TCBs

B
O

W
L

IN
G

Playground

13

ST ANDREW'S ROAD

Leigh Mallory Bridge

Weir

LB

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

TCB

43.9m

39.3m

TCB

67

Sports Ground

65

RAF Station

FB

PW

1

K
E

IT
H

13

PORTAL CLOSE

23

51

5

7

3

Mast

2

PA
R

K
 R

O
A

D

8

47

13

1

Pl

58

SA
U

N
D

E
R

S
 R

O
A

D

1

8

Station

34.1m

10

Playground

RAF Station

63

37

FSs

46

ST ANDREW'S ROAD

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

37.2m

Athletic Ground
41 52

G
R

AY
'S

 R
O

A
D

47

35.1m

Run
ni

ng
 T

ra
ck

58

Lighting Tower

Lighting Tower

Lighting Tower

Hillingdon

House

290

294

78

76 80

75

84

73

79

82

77

83

74

81

´

May
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Former RAF Uxbridge
Hillingdon Road

Uxbridge

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:2,500

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

585/APP/2013/979

Page 74



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

B 
Item No.  Report of the  

Corporate Director of Residents Services  

Address:  NORWICH UNION HOUSE, 1-3 BAKERS YARD, UXBRIDGE

Development: REDEVELOPMENT OF NORWICH UNION HOUSE TO ERECT 
A 9 STOREY BUILDING COMPRISING RETIAL FLOORSPACE 
AT GROUND FLOOR LEVEL AND 8 STOREYS OF 
RESIDENTIAL UNITS (37 UNITS) WITH ASSOCIATED GYM, 
ACCESS AND PARKING ARRANGEMENTS.  

LBH Ref Nos:  8218/APP/2011/1853 

Drawing Nos: AS PER ORIGINAL COMMITTEE REPORT

Date 
applications 
approved at  
Committee

Approved by Central and South Planning Committee 13
March 2013 

S106 
Agreement

That the recommendation to amend the affordable housing 
schedule to allow the entire development to be delivered as 
affordable housing is approved. 
   

1.0 CONSULTATIONS 

1.1 Internal Consultees 

Planning 
Obligations 
Officer 

Following the planning committee the owner has sold the site to 
a registered housing provider. The Registered Provider wishes to 
deliver the entire development as affordable housing thus 
requesting the removal of the financial payment in lieu of on site 
affordable housing delivery and replacing it with 100% of the 
scheme as affordable rent. It is considered that this is acceptable 
given that the council has a shortage of affordable housing under 
this tenure and the delivery of these units as affordable rent will 
assist with meeting our affordable housing targets and therefore 
it is requested that this tenure change is approved.   

Housing Officer There is a far higher demand for rented accommodation in the 
borough than there was last year. We are faced with a shortage 
of this type of tenure and as such are fully in support of this 
proposal as it will enable much needed affordable rented 
accommodation to be delivered to meet local housing needs.  
The registered provider has a limited window of time to justify 
their delivery programme to the GLA or they stand to loose their 
grant funding which would further reduce the ability of this 

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

scheme to deliver the affordable housing units as originally 
proposed if this variation request is not approved.    

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

1. That the Council enter into a deed of variation with the applicants under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) or 
other appropriate legislation to secure: 

(i) The provision of 37 Affordable Rented units delivered at not 
more than 80% of Open Market Rent (inclusive of service 
charges).   

(ii) A financial contribution of £109,190 towards education 
facilities. 

(iii) A financial contribution of £14,716.23 towards health facilities. 
(iv) A financial contribution of £1,562.16 towards the expansion of 

the Borough’s library programme. 
(v) A financial contribution of £29,074.85 towards construction 

training or an in-kind scheme delivered during the 
construction phase of the development. 

(vi) A financial contribution equal to 5% of the total cash 
contributions for project management and monitoring. 

(vii) A s278/38 agreement to be entered into to address any and all 
highways works as directed by the Council’s highway’s 
engineer. 

(viii) A Refuse Management Plan detailing how the refuse collection 
via a private operator is to occur.  

2. That the applicant meets the council’s reasonable costs in the 
preparation of the deed of variation and any abortive work as a result of 
the deed not being completed.  

3. That Officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the amended terms 
for the Affordable Housing Schedule in the Deed of Variation. 

  

3.0 KEY PLANNING ISSUES

3.1 The current planning application was lodged on the 17th of November 2011 
and reported to the Central and South Planning Committee on the 13th of 
March 2013.  

3.2 The Committee determined to approve the application and the decision was 
released on the 12th of June 2013 after the s106 agreement had been signed 
also on the 12th of June 2013. The scheme was the subject of a financial 
viability assessment and the resulting affordable housing obligation was to be 
a financial contribution in the sum of £161,729.60. The owner has since sold 
the site to a Registered Provider who wishes to deliver 100% of the scheme 
as affordable housing on site, hence this deed of variation request.  

3.3 This request has the approval of the housing department. Due to changes in 
market conditions and changes to the grants available for social housing, it 
has not been possible to achieve the 70/30 tenure mix of rented versus 

Page 76



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

intermediate (shared ownership/ discounted market) housing on a number of 
schemes. This has resulted in a very skewed delivery of affordable housing in 
favour of intermediate tenure, which impacts on the number of households in 
bed and breakfast accommodation. The housing department are trying to 
redress this balance of rented and intermediate affordable housing available 
in the borough and a change of tenure to Affordable rent housing units on this 
development would assist in this shift and reducing the burden placed upon 
the local authority.    

3.4 The change will also secure a much greater benefit to the boroughs social 
housing stock than would have been achieved through the off-site financial 
contribution originally secured.  

3.5 Approval to change the delivery of affordable housing from a financial 
contribution to that of on-site delivery as an affordable rent tenure is sought 
and is considered an appropriate course of action to enable the affordable 
housing on this site to be delivered, increasing the affordable housing stock 
delivered from this site and subject to the conditions imposed by the planning 
inspectorate in their decision of 13 November 2009.  

OBSERVATIONS OF BOROUGH SOLICITOR 

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning 
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable 
them to make an informed decision in respect of an application. 

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) 
makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  
Decisions by the Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, 
Members need to be aware of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European 
Convention on Human Rights (the Convention) directly applicable to the actions of 
public bodies in England and Wales.  The specific parts of the Convention relevant to 
planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for 
private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and 
Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination). 

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are 
followed, it is unlikely that this article will be breached. Article 1 of the First Protocol 
and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of these rights protected 
under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for example where 
required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which means it 
must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest 
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective. 
Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without 
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other 
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth 
or other status'. 

OBSERVATIONS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

Page 77



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

The report indicates that the costs of the development will be fully met by the 
developer, and the developer will make a Section 106 contribution to the Council 
towards associated public facilities. The developer will also meet the reasonable 
costs of the Council in the preparation of the Section 106 agreement and any 
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed. Consequently, there 
are no financial implications for this Planning Committee or the Council. 

Reference Documents 

(a) Central and South Planning Committee Agenda 13 March 2013. Report for 
application reference 8218/APP/2011/1853. 

(b) Central and South Planning Committee Minutes 13 March 2013 resolution for 
application reference 8218/APP/2011/1853. 

Contact Officer:  VANESSA SCOTT                        Telephone No:  01895 250 230 

Page 78



8 to 12

29
31

Sloping m
asonr

30

171

4b

37

Bank

159 to 161

1 to 4

48.2m

Aston

20

Cock's Yard

Harman

1

46.0m

32

49

164

Church

165

167

25

162

24

53 to
 57

Bus Station

59

15

48

House

168

26

169

21 to
 27

29

174

163

49

35

El Sub Sta

3

172

Frie
nds' M

eetin
g H

ouse

33

154

Bakers Court

M
S

166

Redford

157

House

Pp

1

St

Walk

4

Frie
nds'

Christ

Shelter

29

BAKER'S YARD

Nash's Yard

BELMONT R
OAD

LB

B
an

k

40.2m

House

BAKER'S RO
AD

REDFO
RD W

AY

Shelters

Orchard
 P

lace

M
arket House

Bennett's
 Yard

HIG
H STREET

65

27

41

42.4m

Market Square

S
h

elters

to

158

28

UXBRIDGE

PH

Bank

PH

50

39 to
 40

53

1
3

5

9

148

54

152

Hall

132a

51

150
151

H
igh Street

1 to 2

1

Culham Court1 to
 20

155to156

1a

Redfo
rd

 S
tu

dio
s

PO

Hotel

U
nd

Uxbridge Station

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Norwich Union House
1 - 3 Bakers Road

Uxbridge

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

8218/APP/2011/1853

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PADCROFT WORKS TAVISTOCK ROAD YIEWSLEY 

Comprehensive redevelopment of site to provide three buildings of part 7
storeys and part 5 storeys comprising 208 residential units, 190 sq.m
(approx) of Use Class B1 floorspace with associated public and private
amenity space, hard and soft landscaping, lower ground floor parking for
vehicles and bicycles, and alterations to 9 High Street to form new pedestrian
route (involving demolition of all existing buildings other than no.9 High
Street)

11/12/2012

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 45200/APP/2012/3082

Drawing Nos: T(20)P00-phase
T(20)E01 Revision A
T(20)E02 Revision A
T(20)E03 Revision A
T(20)E04 Revision B
T(20)P00 Revision C
T(20)P01 Revision A
T(20)P02 Revision A
T(20)P03 Revision A
T(20)P04 Revision A
T(20)P05 Revision A
T(20)P06 Revision A
T(20)P07 Revision A
T(20)S01 Revision A
T(20)S02 Revision A
T(20)S03 Revision A
T(20)S04 Revision A
Design & Access Statement
Planning Addendum Summary
Air Quality Assessment
Energy Statement
Site Investigation Report
CHP Addendum to Air Quality Report
Final Draft Travel Plan
Statement of Community Involvement
Transport Assessment Update
Opertaional Waste Management Strategy Rev C
Flood Risk Assessment
Daylight & Sunlight Report
Marketing Report
Noise Assessment
Verified Views Document
Pedestrian Level Wind Microclimate Assessment
T(20)P-1 Revision E
T(90)P100

Date Plans Received: 26/07/2013
12/12/2012
12/07/2013

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

10/01/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 10

Page 81



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

30/05/2013

09/01/2013
14/12/2012
13/02/2013
12/01/2013

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the comprehensive redevelopment of the site to
provide three buildings of part 7 storeys and part 5 storeys comprising 208 homes, 190
sqm (approx) of Use Class B1 floorspace with associated public and private amenity
space, hard and soft landscaping, lower ground floor parking for vehicles and bicycles,
and alterations to 9 High Street to form a new pedestrian route. 

The scheme will provide 25 social rented and intermediate affordable units, 198 parking
spaces, 10 motorcycle spaces and 292 cycle parking spaces.

The proposed scheme has been amended during the course of officers' consideration of
the application and follows extensive pre and post-submission discussions to overcome
various concerns relating to density, height, detailed design, parking and amenity
standards.

The scheme has been reduced from an initial 241 units to 208 to overcome concerns
about density and height. The proposed parking is considered to meet the anticipated
demand for parking taking into account the arrival of Crossrail, car-ownership levels in
the area, and is comparable to similar sized regeneration schemes nearby and
elsewhere in the borough. The Highways Officer supports the scheme.

The revised design is considered to respond to its local context and provides private and
shared amenity space which meets and exceeds the London Plan standards for new
residential units. More than 10% of the flats will be wheelchair accessible and all will be
Lifetime Homes compliant.

The proposed scheme is considered to be of an acceptable design which would be
compatible within the local context and result in a compliant standard of amenity for
future occupiers without impacting detrimentally on the amenity of neighbouring
residents. The application includes policy compliant S106 contributions towards health
and education which will help to mitigate the impacts of the development. The aplicant
has also addressed all concerns raised by the GLA and TFL.
Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions and
planning obligations.

The development is therefore considered to be in compliance with policies BE13, BE18,

Page 82



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE21, BE23, BE24, AM7, AM9 and R17 of the Local Plan Part 2.

2. RECOMMENDATION

1. That subject to the Mayor not directing the Council under Article 6 of the Town
and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008 to refuse the application, or
under Article 7 of the Order that he is to act as the local planning authority for the
purpose of determining the application, delegated powers be given to the Head of
Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to grant planning permission, subject to any
relevant amendments agreed by the Head of Planning Green Spaces and Culture
and also those requested by the Greater London Authority and the following:

a) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

i. Affordable Housing: 13% by habitable room, plus a review mechanism.
ii. Education: a financial contribution in the sum of £770,426, 
iii. Health: a financial contribution in the sum of £87,777.35
iv. Libraries: a financial contribution in the sum of £9,317.76 
v. Air Quality: A contribution in the sum of £12,500
vi. Construction Training: deliver an in-kind scheme to the value of the financial
contribution.
vii. Project Management and Monitoring: 5% of total cash contributions
(£44,001.10) - can be phased.
viii. Highways Works:
1. Tavistock Road:
a).  Access works to the site, 
b)  Carriageway and footway resurfacing and any associated works between
Tavistock Road access and High Street/Tavistock Road junction except any
recently surfaced footway;
c)  Removing car parking spaces, implementing parking restrictions and
associated costs. 
2. Bentinck Road:
a) Stopping up of existing access and footway reinstatement;
b) New access works; and
c) Relocation of on-street parking spaces, parking restrictions, and associated
costs.
3. Car parking allocation and management scheme;
4. Refuse and delivery management scheme; and
5. Travel Plan
ix) Prohibit future residents of the development from obtaining parking permits
within existing or future controlled parking areas on the public highway.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval. 

Page 83



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM3

COM4

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence:

T(90)P100               Location Plan
T(20)E01 Revision A     Proposed Elevations 1 and 2
T(20)E02 Revision A     Proposed Elevations 3 and 4
T(20)E03 Revision A     Proposed Elevations 5 and 6
T(20)E04 Revision B     Proposed Elevation 7, 8 and 9
T(20)P00 Revision C     Proposed Ground Floor
T(20)P01 Revision A     Proposed First Floor
T(20)P02 Revision A     Proposed Second Floor
T(20)P03 Revision A     Proposed Third Floor
T(20)P04 Revision A     Proposed Fourth Floor
T(20)P05 Revision A     Proposed Fifth Floor
T(20)P06 Revision A     Proposed Sixth Floor
T(20)P07 Revision A     Proposed Seventh Floor 
T(20)P-1 Revision E     Proposed Lower Ground
T(20)S01 Revision A     Proposed Sections 1 and 2
T(20)S02 Revision A     Proposed Sections 3 and 4
T(20)S03 Revision A     Proposed Sections 5 and 6

1

2

D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, delegated
authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to refuse
planning permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to deliver necessary offsite highway works and to provide
contributions towards the improvement of services and facilities as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect of
education, affordable housing, health facilities, public realm, open space
improvement, library improvements, construction and employment training and
delivery of  necessary offsite highway works. The proposal therefore conflicts with
Policy AM2, AM7 and R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the Council's Planning
Obligations SPG.'

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant. 

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture
prior to issuing the decision:

Page 84



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM5

COM6

COM7

RES9

General compliance with supporting documentation

Levels

Materials (Submission)

Landscaping (including refuse/cycle storage)

T(20)S04 Revision A     Proposed Sections 7, 8 and 9
T(20)P00-phase          Phasing Plan

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Noise Mitigation Measures in accordance with (Noise Assessment)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that future and neighbouring residential amenity is not adversley affected by
noise in accordance with Policies OE1, OE3 and OE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of balconies, winter gardens and the privacy find have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images and sample materials shall be available to view on site at the Local
Planning Authorities request.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1.   Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a  Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b  Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

3

4

5

6

Page 85



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES11 Play Area provision of details

1.c  Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage
2.b Cycle Storage
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are
served by electrical charging points)
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials
2.f External Lighting
2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance
4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.
4.c Details of the provision, allocation and management responsibility of the allotments
proposed.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

7. The provision and management of a buffer zone alongside the Grand Union Canal as
detailed in drawing number SBH911/SK_48, Revision D. The buffer zone scheme shall
be free from built development including lighting, domestic gardens and formal
landscaping. The scheme shall include the following elements:
- detail extent and type of new planting
- details of any proposed lighting and fencing.
- details of maintenance regimes and management responsibilities demonstrating how
the buffer zone will be protected during development and managed/maintained over the
longer term including adequate financial provision and named body responsible for
management plus production of detailed management plan 

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13 and BE38
of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs)
and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July 2011).

No development shall take place until details of play areas for children and rooftop

7

Page 86



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES16

RES18

NONSC

NONSC

Code for Sustainable Homes

Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

Protection from Ingress of Polluted Air

Air pollution

amenity space, including maintenance responsibilities, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the play areas and
rooftop amenity space shall be provided prior to the occupation of any unit within the
development and maintained in accordance with the approved details for the life of the
development.

REASON
To ensure that the development makes adequate provision of children's play space in
accordance with Policy R1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London
Plan (July 2011) Policy 3.16.

No development shall take place until an updated Code of Sustainable Homes and
Sustainable Energy Assessment Report has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall demonstrate how the each dwelling
hereby approved shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes (including
design stage certificates) and how the development will reduce regulated CO2 emissions
by 25% (on 2010 building regulations).
Thereafter, the scheme shall be completed in strict accordance with the approved details
and no dwelling shall be occupied until a Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 completion
stage certificate for the relevant dwelling has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development are met in accordance with
Policies 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 of the London Plan (July 2011).

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

No development shall take place until details of a mechanical ventilation system,
designed in accordance with section 8 of the approved Air Quality Assessment submited
as part of this application, have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local
Planning Auhtority. 

Thereafter the ventilation system shall be fully implemented and maintained in strict
accordance with the approved details for as long as the building remains in use. 

REASON
To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan (November 2012).

Before the development is commenced, details of emissions and details to limit and/or

8

9

10

11

Page 87



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

COM15

COM31

Soil Testing

Sustainable Water Management

Secured by Design

control air pollution for any CHP/boilers shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The agreed measures shall be implemented prior to the
occupation of the development and thereafter maintained for the lifetime of the
development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012).

No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until site derived soils and imported soils
have been independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this
testing submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils
used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON
To ensure that  the occupants of the  development are not subject  to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012).

No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision of sustainable water
management has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.  The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that sustainable drainage systems
(SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the development in accordance with
the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime. 
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.
Thereafter the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policy 5.12.

The buildings shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

12

13

14

Page 88



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

COM27

Car Parking Allocation Plan

Car Parking Stackers

Gate Details

Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until a car parking allocation scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall allocate each space to an individual unit within the development, for the sole use by
its occupiers or their visitors. Thereafter the car parking spaces shall be allocated in
accordance with the approved scheme and the parking areas shall be permanently
retained and used for no purpose other than the parking of motor vehicles.

REASON
To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid
out on site in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

No development shall take place until plans, manufactures details and a scheme for the
maintenance of the 49 car parking stackers has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the 49 car parking stackers shall be
installed and maintained in accordance with the approved details in the locations shown
on plan T(20)P-1 Rev A for as long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid
out on site in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the
pedestrian/vehicular gates/barriers into the site, incorporating facilities for the operation
of gates/barriers by disabled persons, and manual operation of any gates/barriers in the
event of power failure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter the gates/barriers shall be installed in accordance with the approved
details and maintained so long as the development remains on site.

REASON
In order to ensure the development achieves an appropriate level of accessibility in
accordance with Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (July 2011) and the HDAS -Accessible
Hillingdon.

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently

15

16

17

18

Page 89



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM30

NONSC

Contaminated Land

Bird Hazard Management Plan

retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a
minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may
share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan
(July 2011).

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:
(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;
(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use.
(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any
part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Prior to commencement of each phase of the outline element of the development, or any
of the elements of development for which full planning permission is hereby approved,
detailed drawings and supporting documentation in relation to the relevant phase or
component of the full planning element shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority, in respect of the following:
i) A Bird Hazard Management Plan which shall include the following details:
- Details of any water features, 

19

20

Page 90



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

No External Storage

Servicing & Delivery Management Plan

EA Condition 1

- Monitoring of any standing water within the site,
- Drainage details including Sustainable Urban Drainage Schemes (SUDS). Such
schemes must also comply with Advice Note 6 Potential Bird Hazards from SUDS which
is available at www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp
- Management of any flat roofs within the site which may be attractive to nesting, roosting
or 'loafing' birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice Note 8 - Potential Bird
Hazards from Building Design (www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp),
- Any earthworks,
- The species, number and spacing of trees and shrubs,
- reinstatement of grass areas,
- maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of the height and
species of plants that are allowed to grow,
- which waste materials can be brought on to the site,
- monitoring of waste imports,
- physical arrangement for collection and storage of putrescible waste,
- signs deterring people from feeding birds.

Thereafter and prior to occupation of each relevant phase/relevant component of the full
planning element, the scheme shall be completed in strict accordance with the approved
details and thereafter maintained for the life of the development.

REASON
To protect Aircraft safety in accordance with Policy A6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No placing or storage of goods, materials, plant or equipment shall take place other than
within the buildings and the service yard. The height of any goods, material, equipment
etc. shall not be stacked higher than the retaining wall to the boundary of the school or
4m (which ever is the lower).

REASON
In the interests of amenity and to ensure that external areas are retained for the
purposes indicated on the approved plans in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). and London Plan
(July 2011) Policy 7.1.

Prior to commencement of development, details of a Delivery and Servicing Plan for the
residential units and B1 Office shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall incorporate measures to minimise vehicle deliveries during
am and pm peak hours. The approved strategy shall be implemented as soon as
development is brought into use and the strategy shall remain in place thereafter. Any
changes to the strategy shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To encourage out of hours/off peak servicing to help mitigate the site's contribution to
local congestion levels in compliance with Policy AM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at
the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local

21

22

23

Page 91



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

EA Condition 2

Opening Hours B1

planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation
strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination
shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from the local planning authority. The
remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved. 

REASON
To ensure protection of controlled waters in accordance with Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policy 5.12.

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted
other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be
given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details. 

REASON
To ensure protection of controlled waters in accordance with Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policy 5.12.

The B1 premises hereby approved at ground floor level shall not be used outside the
following hours: -
[0800 to 2100], Mondays - Fridays
[0800 to 2000] Saturdays
[1000 to 1800] Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

24

25

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national
guidance.

LPP 1.1
LPP 2.1
BE13
BE18

2011)Delivering the strategic vision and objectives for London
(2011) London in its global, European and UK context
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Page 92



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE25
BE26
BE31
BE32

BE36
BE38

OE1

OE11

OE3

OE7

OE8

H4
H5
S12
R1

R10

R16

R17

LE4

AM13

AM18

AM2

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings
Facilities for the recreational use of the canal
Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal
Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas
Development proposals in or near areas deficient in recreational
open space
Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities
for canal borne freight
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

Page 93



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I59

I58

I1

I15

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Opportunities for Work Experience

Building to Approved Drawing

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

3

4

5

6

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
 On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership. 

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd:  contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE  Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

AM7
AM8

AM9

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities

Page 94



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I2

I21

I3

I45

I48

I49

Encroachment

Street Naming and Numbering

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Discharge of Conditions

Refuse/Storage Areas

Secured by Design

7

8

9

10

11

12

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Your attention is drawn to the pre-commencement conditions which must be discharged
prior to the commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should
you commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these condition(s). The Council
may consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of this condition(s). For
further information and advice contact - Planning & Community Services, Civic Centre,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

The proposed refuse and recycling storage areas meet the requirements of the Council's
amenity and accessibility standards only. The proposed storage area must also comply
with Part H of the Building Regulations. Should design amendments be required to
comply with Building Regulations, these should be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. For further information and advice contact - Planning &
Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250400).

The Council has identified the specific security needs of the application site to be
protection and security of bicycles within the parking parking area of the site.

Page 95



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I60 Cranes

13

14

15

16

17

18

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is situated on the south side of Yiewsley in Hillingdon, West London. It is located
on the north side of High Street Yiewsley. It occupies a number of derelict and under used
plots behind the retail properties at the junction of Yiewsley and West Drayton High
Streets.

The site of approximately 8,992sq metres in area is comprised of a number of previously
unrelated plots of land. The main body of the site occupies land behind the retail
properties that front the High Street. Largely surrounded by existing buildings, the site is

You are advised to submit details to overcome the specified security needs in order to
comply with condition 17 this planning permission.

The applicant/developer should contact the Canal & River Trust's Third Party Works
Engineer with reference to the current Canal & River Trust Code of Practice for Works
affecting the Canal & River Trust to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-property)

The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment or access onto the canal
towpath requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact
the Canal & River Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young
(jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) regarding the required access agreement

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction. The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This
is explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available
at www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

Wind Turbines can impact on the safe operation of aircraft through interference with
aviation radar and/or due to their height. Any proposal that incorporates wind turbines
must be assessed in more detail to determine the potential impacts on aviation interests.
This is explained further in Advice Note 7, Wind Turbines and Aviation (available at
http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-safeguarding.htm).

You are encouraged to ensure that facilities are provided to enable the easy watering of
the roof garden, including any allotment facilities which might feature in the final
landscaping details, and to ensure such facilities maximise opportunities for the re-use of
rainwater.

You are advised that no doors or gates should be installed which open out of the public
highways as these may contravene The Highways Act 1980 (as amended).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 96



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

separated from the residential buildings of Winnock Road by an expansive but low rise
warehouse building. There is currently no through route from one side of the site to the
other.

The current site contains a mixture of building types and scales. The Dairy Crest Depot is
largely of brick construction and mostly single storey wrapped around the open yards. The
other commercial buildings around the edges of the site range from one to four storeys
and are in a range of materials and styles. 

The site sits immediately behind the High Street, which is a mixture of three and four
storey traditional buildings with dormers and pitched roofs. These are retail and small
scale commercial at ground floor with residential and further commercial units above. 

There are a number of buildings opposite, on the high street, that appear to date form
1980's and 90's and these too are of three and four storeys. Bentinck Road is a mix of
styles and heights along both its sides. A recent planning permission has been granted on
the Harrier House site for an apart hotel with up to 6 storeys along the canal frontage
before stepping down to three storeys on the pavement with Bentinck Road. 

The terraces on Winnock Road form a consistent and intact residential edge a short
distance north of the site. These are generally of traditional form with pitched roofs, rear
extensions and long narrow private gardens. At the west end of the street is a commercial
property of three storeys that is higher that the terraces.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the comprehensive redevelopment of site to provide three buildings of
part 7 storeys and part 5 storeys comprising 208 residential units, 190 sqm (approx) of
Use Class B1 floorspace, and 64 sqm of Use Class A1 floorspace with associated public
& private amenity space, hard & soft landscaping, lower ground floor parking for vehicles
and bicycles, and alterations to 9 High Street to form a new pedestrian route. 

It should be noted that the scheme has been revised since the initial submission, which
was for a part 9, part 7 and part 5 story development. 

The residential units would be provided by way of a flatted development. The flats would
comprise a total of 44 one-bedroom units, 123 two-bedroom units and 41 three-bedroom
units. The commercial floorspace would be provided on the ground floor of a block facing
Bentinck Road.

The development would consist of 3 blocks ranging in height from four to 5-storeys
(including basement parking) across the site, with the taller units located to the rear of the
site close to the boundary with the industrial units to the north west. A pedestrian access
is proposed to be created through part of the ground floor retails unit at no. 9 High Street,
whilst retianing this retail unit. 

The main vehicular access for cars to the site is from Tavistock Road. There is a
secondary access for refuse, servicing and delivery vehicles from Bentinck Road.

The current proposals indicate basement parking would be provided for the various uses,
throughout the site. 

Areas of communal amenity space would be provided at ground level and at roof level.
Private amenity space would be provided by way of private courtyards at ground level

Page 97



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning permission was refused for planning application ref: 45200/APP/2005/929 for the
redevelopment of part of the current site to provide 62 residential units. It was later
allowed at appeal.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

together with balconies.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

LPP 1.1

LPP 2.1

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE25

BE26

BE31

BE32

BE36

BE38

OE1

OE11

OE3

OE7

OE8

H4

2011)Delivering the strategic vision and objectives for London

(2011) London in its global, European and UK context

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

Facilities for the recreational use of the canal

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal

Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Mix of housing units

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 98



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H5

S12

R1

R10

R16

R17

LE4

AM13

AM18

AM2

AM7

AM8

AM9

Dwellings suitable for large families

Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

Development proposals in or near areas deficient in recreational open space

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and
Business Areas

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities for canal
borne freight

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Not applicable5th February 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

A total of 354 neighbouring properties were consulted. 24 letters of objection were received.
Objections were raised on the following grounds:

i) Out of keeping with the area.
ii) Impact on highway network/Traffic.
iii) Additional pressure on local services.
iv) No need for such a development in this area.
v) Traffic congestion resulting from the development.
vi) The 9 storey proposals were too high.
vii) Demoplition of no.9 high street is unnaceptable. 
viii) Loss of privacy and daylight to existing properties.
ix) Unacceptable loss of office space.
x) Overdevelopment.
xi) Insufficient car parking.

Page 99



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

xii) Impact on already heavily parked and Tavistock Road.

YIEWSLEY & WEST DRAYTON TOWN CENTRE ACTION GROUP 
The amendments have been noted and discussed.

There was general agreement that the proposed amendments have, in the main, addressed some
of the concerns expressed previously. However, there is still some concern in relation to increased
vehicular movement/access in Tavistock Road and the junction with High Street/ Station
Approach/Station Road. Concern has also been expressed as to the proposed pedestrian access
through No 9 the High Street. These 2 particular buildings are the last vestiges of the historical link
with Colham Bridge/Colham Wharf/High Street. There was also concern about the impact of this
access onto the footway.

BAA
No objections raised subject to Bird Hazard Management Plan condition together with a Cranes
and landscaping informative.

NATURAL ENGLAND
No objection.

DEFENCE ESTATES
No Objection.

GLA
London Plan policies on the loss of industrial land, land use and the principle of a residential-led
scheme, details of the density, quality, unit size and mix of residential accommodation; the
proportion of affordable housing, the design and impact on the townscape, transport issues; and
the energy provisions of the scheme are relevant to this application.

The application complies with some of these policies but not with others, for the following
reasons:

i) Loss of employment land: No specific land use designation in the London Plan or Hillingdon Local
Plan, but proposal complies with the town centre and regeneration objectives of the London Plan
and is therefore acceptable from a strategic planning perspective. Hillingdon Council should,
nonetheless, ensure that the potential loss of employment premises is acceptable in terms of the
borough's supply of industrial land.
ii) Affordable housing: ln light of the low proportion of affordable housing (14% by unit), the Council
is urged to commission an independent and robust review of the applicant's financial viability
appraisal, in order to ascertain that the contribution proposed is indeed the maximum reasonable
amount that can be provided without compromising the delivery of this scheme.
iii) Housing mix: Notwithstanding the town centre location of the site, the GLA encourages the
Council to negotiate an uplift in the proportion of three bedroom apartments, relative to one and
two-bedroom units, unless the current mix of dwellings has previous been agreed with the applicant
to reflect a specific local need. 
iv) Design: To enhance the levels of legibility, activity, sun/eillance, security and a sense of
ownership for the central space, whilst fulfilling the strategic objectives set out in the London
Housing Design Guide, the applicant is requested to reconfigure the design of the ground floor
units looking out onto the central amenity space to ensure that each has its own individual entrance
directly from the public realm.
v) Transport: For the purpose of assessing the net impact of the development, TfL requests the
applicant to confirm if the existing buildings have been vacant for over a year and do not therefore
generate any trips; and to clarify the methodology used in the calculating trip generation. The
Council should secure implementation of the submitted travel plan by legal agreement, section 106

Page 100



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

EPU
Air Quality

The proposed development is within the declared AQMA and in an area which currently appears to
be slightly under the European Union limit value (40 mg/m3) for annual mean nitrogen dioxide
(NO2), and may be exceeding the EU limit value based on CERC modelling for 2011. The nearby
NOx tubes to date are below the EU limit value, and there does not appear to have been much
change in the levels over the last four to five years.

The air quality assessment, based on the transport assessment (JMP, November 2012), has
indicated the impact from the redevelopment of Rainbow industrial estate, Station House and the
Bentley Disco site (but not Harrier or Versatile House on Bentinck Road) were considered
alongside the development which includes approximately 185 parking spaces (given the location
and possible issues at junctions, clarification is required on if the transport assessment
appropriately reflects the impact from the development(s)). It does not consider the impact from the
CHP (the addendum document indicates up to a 100 kWe natural gas engine would be in use with
(unspecified) boilers), car park emissions and railway emissions (it is possible the line electrification
works may be completed by 2022) within the air quality assessment. The impacts of air quality on
onsite residential receptors were considered, although it does not appear to include the likely worst
impacted facades and does not appear to indicate NO2 levels at the fascade of the building above
the ground floor level. It is anticipated NO2 limits will be met above floor three, possibly except
where there is a local source such as the stack for the CHP.

The baseline assessment was carried for 2012 and 2022 with and without the development. NO2
levels have largely dropped off in 2022, and it is assumed this is primarily due to the emission
factors used in the modelling, which generally still indicates likely exceedances in the high street
location(s) only. It seems unlikely the lowering of NO2 levels are due to the development, but rather
are a result of assumptions made on 'engine efficiency and tighter emission control'.

The transport assessment indicates trip generation will go up by 7 for the new use, but the air
quality assessment indicates that there will to be less pollution than with the existing use. HDV
movements are the same for both 2022 scenarios, therefore the reason for the lower NO2 levels
associated with the new development are unclear. At the six receptor locations considered

funding to implement works arising from the pedestrian audit and impose planning conditions to
secure submission of a construction logistics plan and a delivery and senxicing plan, as set out in
the TfL section of this report.
vi) Energy: Whilst the energy provisions are broadly compliant with the London Plan, the following
additional details are required to ensure that submitted strategy is sufficiently robust: a written
commitment to ensure that the development would be designed to allow future connection to a
district heating network whenever one becomes available; a drawing showing the route of the heat
network linking all buildings on the site; written confirmation that the site heat network will be
supplied from a single energy centre, together with the floor area and location of the energy centre;
and a drawing showing the location, layout and area of the proposed photovoltaic panels.

On balance, whilst the application is broadly acceptable in strategic planning terms, it does
not comply fully with the London Plan.

OFFICER COMMENT: The scheme has been ammended and further details submitted to address
GLA concerns.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
No objection raised subject to conditions.

Page 101



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(assumed to be at ground floor level), no NO2 exceedances were indicated in the modelling for
2012 or 2022. 

As the development is in and will cause increases in an area already suffering poor air quality the
following is requested:

Section 106

Section 106 obligation of £12,500 should be sought for contribution to the air quality monitoring
network in the area. 

The following condition is recommended as a precaution as mechanical ventilation with heat
recovery is indicated for the site, alongside natural ventilation. They need to ensure any air is drawn
in from a clean location.

Air Quality Condition 1: Ingress of Polluted Air

Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed accommodation from
external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by the LPA. Verification information shall be
submitted for any works which form part of such a scheme, which shall be completed before any
part of the development is first occupied or used and measures put in place to ensure it is
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON: To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan.

Notes: In areas where there the air pollution levels are above, or close to, the national and
European limits, this is designed to safeguard the future residents/users of the site from the ingress
of the poor outdoor air quality. The design must take into account climate change pollutants and
ensure there are no trade-offs between local and global pollutant emissions. Suitable ventilation
systems will need to: take air from a clean location or treat the air and remove pollutants; designed
to minimise energy usage; be sufficient to prevent summer overheating; have robust arrangements
for maintenance. 

The following condition is advised in order to ensure relevant information with regard to pollution
emissions from the final energy provision at the site is provided, so that mitigation measures can be
agreed and implemented if necessary, as part of the development. Of particular concern would be
the units that may be impacted by CHP stack emissions.

Air Quality Condition 2 - Control of Air Pollution

Before the development is commenced, details of emissions and details to limit and/or control air
pollution for any CHP/boilers shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The agreed measures shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the development
and thereafter maintained for the lifetime of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). 

Please consider the following comments with regard to land contamination.

Land Contamination

Page 102



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The Site Investigation is limited and identifies a number of potentially contaminating former uses on
site including a milk depot, joinery works and light industrial uses (kitchen workshop fabricators, a
sheet metal fabricators and a car body workshop), and potentially contaminating uses adjacent to
the site such as a former printing works. The main areas of contamination identified in the report
are associated with two areas fuel storage and slightly elevated PAHs (polycyclic aromatic
hydrocarbons particularly in the vicinity of WS5, WS6 and WS7) in made ground around the site
associated with ashy soils.

Part of the site was fire damaged. It is unclear if any materials used to put out the fire may have
caused contamination. There are also references to cement asbestos sheeting and suspected
cement asbestos roof, refrigeration units/areas, an old electrical plant room, and rubble, soil and
general waste being dumped on part of the site. The report notes they could not investigate the
area of the former joinery works due to access issues.

Of the areas investigated, contamination risks to the proposed use was identified in the vicinity of
the diesel tank only. The report recommends the consultants be present when tank removal works
are undertaken, and further investigation be undertaken once the floor slab has been removed. It
also indicates groundwater monitoring wells should be retained so monitoring can be undertaken
prior to the construction phase (during the one round of groundwater monitoring undertaken,
hydrocarbon contamination of groundwater was noted in WS6, with slightly elevated PID (photo-
ionisation detector) readings associated with VOCs (volatile organic compounds)). It is advisable to
have a discovery strategy/watching brief in place before any hard standing or floor slabs are
removed to ensure any suspected contamination is reported and investigated. The report also
indicates the need for protective pipe work due to areas impacted by PAHs, and the provision of a
verification report for the remedial works to be provided to the local authority.

Three rounds of gas monitoring work has been undertaken using the nine combined gas and
groundwater monitoring wells. No methane was reported as detected in the wells, and the highest
recorded carbon dioxide (CO2) level was 3.8 %. Depleted oxygen was also indicated in the
monitoring wells with slightly elevated CO2. Although all monitoring visits were undertaken at high
atmospheric pressure, barometric pressure was indicated as falling in all instances. This appears to
be the case in at least one instance. The report indicates ground conditions are such that gas risk
is probably low. There is insufficient information with regard to risks associated with VOCs.

The application appears to include a basement area (car parking, storage, energy centre) at the
above site, with the exception of the 'south western' corner. The extent of the basement area is
unclear, but it is likely some made ground including some of the contaminated ground will have to
be removed from the site as part of the development works. It is anticipated all basement areas will
require adequate ventilation, including the storage areas and energy centre, therefore gas and
vapour protection measures may not be necessary. Clarification is required with regard to areas of
the building without a basement, and the extent of any gas or vapour risks in these areas, if any.

Based on the report, the only remedial works identified are associated with tank removal and the
use of protective pipes. There is a possibility there may be more than two tanks at the site. Further
clarification is required with regard to remedial works at the site, including the areas that are
required to be investigated, the provision of a discovery strategy/watching brief to be maintained
during works, the extent of the proposed remedial verification works and soil testing to be
implemented for garden and landscaped areas, including the contamination criteria to be used.

Please ensure the Environment Agency is consulted with regard to possible pile foundations, SUDs
and potential groundwater contamination issues. There is a lack of monitoring for VOCs,
particularly chlorinated solvents in the groundwater at the site.

The standard contaminated land condition is advised for any permission that may be given

Page 103



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

alongside a separate soil contamination condition for landscaped areas including the roof gardens
(for any reused and imported soils). (i) (a) has been met, and (i) (b) has been partly met. 

Contaminated Land Condition
(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance
Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The
scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing:

(a)   A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant
to the site;
(b)   A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater sampling,
together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified
and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks, limitations and
recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed use; and
(c)   A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to
commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation scheme
is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to the remediation
scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and 

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a comprehensive
verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). 

Condition to minimise risk of contamination from garden and landscaped areas

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be
independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when using this
condition.

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

HIGHWAYS
There has been extensive dialogue between the development and the Council's Highways Officer

Page 104



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

in relation to detailed transport matters.

No objection is raised to the development in relation to traffic generation or impacts on the
operation of the highway network.

There would be 198 parking spaces proposed, 1 for a general site manager and 197 to serve the
residential units. This equates to a parking ration of 0.95 spaces per unit.  This level of car parking
is similar to the levels approved on other developments within Yiewsley and is considered entirely
appropriate having regard to the sites location, particularly in relation to the town centre and station
which will be served by Crossrail.

The plans also demonstrate cycle storage in compliance with the Council's standards and
Refuse/Recycling storage which would be appropriate subject to a refuse management strategy
which could be secured by way of a legal agreement.

Initial concerns relating to layout and servicing have been largely addressed through the
submission of additional information and amended plans.  It is considered that the outstanding
details matters can be suitably addressed through the imposition of an appropriate legal agreement
and conditions.

On balance, it is not considered that there are any highways grounds on which refusal of the
application could be justified.

ACCESS OFFICER
In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon"
adopted January 2010. Compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant) should be
shown on plan.

The development would include 25 car parking spaces undercover at lower ground level. Each
building will be accessible via a lift core, except for Building A which would be accessed via a
pedestrian ramp from an open area in front of the building that provides natural surveillance.  All
footpaths would provide a gradient shallower than 1:20 to avoid the need for ramps.

The wheelchair flats have been designed by reference to the requirements of Habinteg -
Wheelchair housing design guide, second edition. All units have a fully accessible bathroom and in
each case the main bedroom is set out with the relevant clear zones. The larger wheelchair
apartments, 4 persons and above, have a second accessible toilet. The majority of wheelchair flats
are at ground level with the remainder at first, second, third and fourth floors of building C. All
buildings would have level access to lifts and generous lobbies that provide access to all floors.
Private balconies and terraces would have no-step thresholds to facilitate easy access to external
spaces. All shared amenity spaces are accessed by lifts to roof levels. Access to refuse stores
would be gained by the accessible lifts with refuse storage areas at either ground level or lower
ground level. The refuse stores are sized to enable a wheelchair turning circle.

Notwithstanding the above observations, the following comments are provided:

1. Every core in each block containing 15 flats or more should provide 2 passenger lifts to ensure
reliability of access for wheelchair users to their accommodation above ground floor. It is
considered to be unacceptable to provide wheelchair accessible accommodation above ground
floor in situations where only one lift would be provided.

2. All Lifetime Home Standard bathrooms (the remaining 216 flats) should ensure a layout which

Page 105



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

complies with the specifications detailed in the above Supplementary Planning Document (adopted
January 2010).

3. A minimum of one bathroom per flat should include and specify floor gulley drainage to allow for
future installation of a level access shower facility.

Currently unacceptable. Provided that revised plans are received to address the above accessibility
issues, no objection would be raised.

OFFICER COMMENT: The scheme has been amended, with the number of units reduced by 33. A
condition is recommended requiring that all flats meet lifetime homes standards. 

Additional access officer comments: This is a revised lower ground floor car parking plan showing
wheelchair accessible parking spaces with both a 1.2m buffer zone to the side and rear of each
parking space, as requested by TfL. In the course of making this amendment, the number of
wheelchair accessible spaces has been reduced from 23 to 21. Whilst this does not provide a ratio
of 1:1 for the 25 wheelchair accessible flats, it maintains a provision of 1:1 disabled parking for
each of the 21 wheelchair units which are required by policy.  The additional 4 units would still
provide higher than necessary levels of accessibility.

TREES & LANDSCAPING
The site is occupied by a disparate collection of industrial buildings (some of which are vacant or in
poor condition) and service yards situated at the southern end, and to the west the retail units
edging Yiewsley High Street. Occupying an area of 0.8685 hectares, it is bounded to the north-east
by Bentick Road beyond which lies the Grand Union Canal and to the south by Tavistock Road,
beyond which is the railway line and West Drayton Station. The terraced houses along Winnock
Road, to the north-west of the site, currently form the interface between the industrial area and the
neighbouring residential area.

There are no trees or other landscape features of merit on the site. The only tree which is close to
the site boundary is an off-site highway tree (ref: 01197, a Norway Maple) situated within the
Tavistock Road footway close to the south-east boundary of the site. 

There are no trees on, or close to, the site which are afforded special protection by Tree
Preservation Order or Conservation Area designation.

The proposal is to demolish all of the existing buildings on the site enclosed by Bentinck Road and
Tavistock Road prior to implementing a comprehensive redevelopment of the site.  The proposal is
to provide three buildings of part 9 storeys, part 7 storeys and part 5 storeys comprising 241
residential units, 190 sq.m (approx) of Use Class D1 floor-space, and 64 sq.m (approx) of Use
Class A1 floor-space with associated public and private amenity space, hard and soft landscaping,
lower ground floor parking for vehicles and bicycles, and alterations to 9 High Street to form new
pedestrian route (involving demolition of all existing buildings). 

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.
i) No trees or other significant landscape features will be affected by the proposal.
ii) The Design & Access Statement (D&AS) describes the development proposal in terms of
CABE's guidance on tall buildings in section 4.0.  The development will be bisected by a pedestrian
route with the potential to link through to the High Street via the ground-floor of 9 High Street
(currently a retail unit).  Behind the High Street and between the two buildings a curvilinear
landscaped amenity space will be created providing public / communal open space at a raised /
podium level.
iii) The D&AS explains the layout and scale in section 6.2 with the building behind the High Street

Page 106



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

at 5 storeys.  The rear building has a range of heights from 5 and 6 storeys in the wings up to 9
storeys in the centre.
iv) The impact of the development is assessed in section 7.0 of the D&AS, based on the 11No.
Verified View Images, by Harris Kalinka Ltd.  To summarise, the  proposed development will be
most visible from viewpoints 06 - Station Road, West Drayton (looking north), 07 - Horton Road,
Yiewsley (looking west),  08 - St Stephens Road (looking south)  and 09 - Trout Road (looking
south), as illustrated in the 'rendered photorealistic images'. 
v) The amenity space provision is expressed in plan view in section 9.0 Access: Amenity which
indicates the provision of three smaller ground level shared amenity spaces in addition to the larger
central space and the intensive green roofs on the taller block at varying levels.
vi) Section 8 of the D&AS illustrates the proposed appearance of the development with selected
computer generated graphic images of the central amenity (landscaped space) and a number of
roof garden / terraces at high level.
vii) Section 10 Key Strategies describes the Landscape Strategy for the site. This includes the
crescent-shaped park at the centre of the site, which will include lawns, planting and 'natural' play /
activity areas.  The shared courtyards are to include play space for toddlers (0-4 yrs), lawns,
decked areas, seating and 'abundant planting'. Private terraces will be sheltered with evergreen
hedge planting to define boundaries and separation between the public amenity spaces and the
private space. Green roofs are to include extensive roofs (for biodiversity) and intensive roofs (roof
gardens for the use and enjoyment of residents).
Churchman Landscape Architects have illustrated the design concepts for the shared courtyards,
play strategy, and the roof strategy.
viii) Finally, maps are used to demonstrate the provision and proximity of public open space,
biodiversity, play provision and routes within an 800 metre radius of the site.
ix) A 'Pedestrian Level Wind Microclimate Assessment' (Desk Study) by RWDI, using the 'Lawson
Comfort Criteria' considers the effect of the prevailing winds - south-westerly throughout the year
and the secondary, colder, wind from the north-east which is most prevalent in the spring.  In
Appendix B the report acknowledges the value, and recommends the use, of soft landscaping
which can be used effectively to create naturalised shelter within and around the site.  This will be
essential to mitigate the microclimate created by tall buildings.
x) Amongst the conclusions (section 8, items 3-5) the microclimate assessment recommends that:
Entrances located in zones suitable for leisure walking would benefit from localized, detailed design
to mitigate the leisure walking conditions that are expected during the windiest season. This
mitigation could take the form of simple localized screening of the entrances or the relocation of
entrances to more sheltered parts of the elevation. In ground level amenity areas, the wind
microclimate is expected to be suitable for a mix of sitting and standing during the summer months.
This mixed wind environment may be acceptable to the design team but, if not, planting and soft
landscaping could be implemented to create shelter from prevailing winds.  At terrace level,
mitigation measures have been recommended in the form of perimeter screening to a height of
1.5m (maximum) with additional screening or planting in central parts of the larger terraces to
prevent the wind from blowing back down onto the terrace. The intention would be to create sitting
conditions during the summer season on the terraces.
xi) An ecological assessment by Applied Ecology Ltd concludes (section 4) that no evidence of
roosting bats was seen in association with any of the buildings and that no further survey work for
bats or other ecological receptors is considered necessary.
xii) Landscape conditions are necessary to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality and to ensure that adequate facilities are provided in accordance with the proposed layout.

No objection, subject to the above considerations and conditions COM6, COM7, COM9 (parts 1, 2,
3, 4, 5 and 6).

DESIGN & CONSERVATION
The Council's Design Officer raised objections to the original scheme principally relating to the
scale and massing of the buildings.

Page 107



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

PARTIAL DEMOLITION
The site is located in a secondary shopping frontage within a Town centre. The Unit at 9
High Street is currently in A1 use. 

Policy S6 of the Local Plan Part 2 states that to safeguard the amenities of shopping
areas, the Local Planning Authority will grant permission for changes of use of Class A1
shops if:

a) The proposal will not be detrimental to visual amenity where the premises form part of a
statutory or locally Listed Building or are located within a Conservation Area.

Comment: The application building is not listed and does not lie within a Conservation
Area.

b) A frontage of a design appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided: 

Comment: The proposal is to create a 'cut through' by removing the shopping unit. It is
considered that, on balance, the cut through will be in keeping with the facade of the the
terrace of shops.

c) The proposed use is compatible with neighbouring uses and will not cause
unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby residential properties by reason of disturbance,
noise, smell, fumes, parking or traffic related problems:

Comment: No such issues are considered to arise. 

d) Has no harmful effect on road safety and does not worsen traffic congestion or disrupt
bus operations.

Comment: No such issues are considered to arise. 

The application site is located within the Secondary Shopping Area of West Drayton
Centre. Therefore Policy S11 of the Local Plan Part 2 would require the change of use of
the premises to ensure the remaining retail facilities in the Secondary Shopping Area
would be adequate for the need of the retail area. In addition the development should not
lead to a concentration of non-retail uses which might harm the viability of the retail

The scheme has been substantially amended to reduce the height of the building and remove
significant elements of built form serving re to rationalise the development.  The amendments have
substantially improved the relationships between the building and the open space within the
scheme while also maintaining an appropriate relationship with the surrounding built form.  Having
regard to the high quality design of the individual building it is considered that the scheme will
provide an appropriate layout and appearance serving to enhance the area.

There are concerns regarding the impact of the pedestrian walkway through no.9 high street which
is an attractive building.  However, the building is not in a Conservation Area nor is is listed or
locally listed.  The scheme has been amended so that the scheme creates a smaller pedestrian
walkway which retains the majority of this building architectural features.  On balance, it is
considered that the harm of creating the proposed walkway would be limited and would be
significantly outweighed by the benefits provided by the walkway in terms of permeability between
the scheme, the high street and the station.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 108



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

centre.

The proposed scheme would not result in the loss of any A1 shopping units. Whilst a cut
through is proposed through one of the shopping units, the A1 unit will remain, albeit with
a marginally smaller footprint than that which currently exists. 

No objection is raised to the loss of B1 Office space. There would be no objection to the
proposed commercial space.

LOSS OF EXISTING BUILDING
Policy LE4 states that proposals which involve the loss of existing industrial floorspace or
land outside designated industrial and business areas will normally only be permitted if:- 

(i) The existing use seriously affects amenity, through disturbance to neighbours, visual
intrusion or an adverse impact in the character of an area; or 
(ii) The site is unsuitable for industrial redevelopment because of the size, shape, location
or lack of vehicular access; or 
(iii) There is no realistic prospect of the land being used for industrial and warehousing
purposes in the future; or 
(iv) They are in accordance with the council's regeneration policies for an area.

The applicant has submitted a Commercial Viability Report, which establishs the general
level of demand for B1, B2 and B8 uses in the area, assessing the likelihood of the site
being let in the long term on rents at (or close to) market rental levels, and alternative
commercial uses of the application site. The evidence is considered robust.

It must be noted that use of the word 'or' at the end of each of these four criteria implies
that they are mutually exclusive, meaning Policy LE4 will have been satisfied even if only
one of the four criteria has been met. In the case of this application, it is considered that
all four criteria have been met. 

In visual terms, the collection of existingbuildings detracts from the character and
appearance of the area and the redevelopment proposal provides a timely opportunity to
provide an innovative architectural response. 

The marketing report sets out that there is no realistic prospect of the current buildings
being re-let at anything approaching market rental rates or even at rents that would
support the costs necessary to keep the properties in a decent state of repair. The result
is the site will likely continue to spiral into decline. 

With negligible prospect of a future landowner being likely to make a significant
investment in redeveloping the site for commercial use, the marketing report concludes
that the site has come to the end of its economic life. Further, continuation of the current
temporary uses, the partial vacancy and appearance of dereliction is harmful to the
economic well-being and vitality of the town centre as well as its appearance. 

The site is considered, by virtue of its town centre location and designation within the
Heathrow Opportunity Area, as being suitable in principle for a residential-led regeneration
of the site. 

In order to specifically address Policy LE4, Houston Lawrence's report is considered to
sufficiently demonstrate that the site is no longer suitable for commercial use, and
therefore suitable for release to another use. The report analyses the industrial property

Page 109



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

market within the Yiewsley and West Drayton area in order to determine the current levels
of market activity in terms of supply and demand for industrial/warehouse premises, by
examining the amount and nature of vacant industrial and warehousing floorspace in the
area.

Taking into consideration the size of the buildings on site, their condition, locational
constraints such as site accessibility and the proximity of other more attractive commercial
locations in the area, the Houston Lawrence report notes a number of key issues:

i) Globe House, due to its stark appearance, unusual narrowness, inadequate floor-to-
ceiling heights and dilapidated condition, no longer represents an attractive proposition for
a potential occupier. The building has come to the end of its economic life. The cost of
refurbishing the building to an acceptable standard would be unlikely to be recouped over
the lifetime of a letting contract.
ii) The buildings to the rear of the site, including the industrial buildings on the former
Dairy Crest site, are single storey industrial/warehouse premises that have also come to
the end of their economic life. The buildings are only occupied by virtue of their extremely
low rental levels and tenant-friendly leases which include no obligations to repair or
maintain the buildings, and have generous break clauses. To achieve anything like the full
market rental level, these building would need a substantial financial investment, possibly
involving demolition and redevelopment. As with Globe House, it is highly unlikely that
such an investment would be commercially viable. 
iii) The site suffers from severe locational constraints. In particular, the narrow one-way
access from Bentinck Road and the presence of parked cars on Tavistock Road make
access to the site for industrial purposes extremely challenging.
iv) There is currently more than 600,000 sq ft of B1 accommodation in Hillingdon, ranging
from modern offices to basic small units. The average time on the market is 1,000 days
(i.e. approximately three years). There is also currently in excess of 270,000 sq ft of B2
and B8 accommodation in the borough, again in a range of unit sizes. The average time
that these premises are on the market is approximately 394 days. Hence, there is a
sufficient supply of existing B1, B2 and B8 premises to meet market demand. 
v) The application site is not identified by the Council as one of its Preferred Industrial
Locations (PILs), thereby adding weight to the report's conclusion that growth is likely to
centre on the former MoD site at Uxbridge and at Stockley Park both of which are PILs.

The report demonstrates that all four of the LE4 policy requirements are broadly met:
there is little demand for industrial and warehousing units; the units are only occupied
because of their heavily-discounted rents; there is significant capacity for businesses to
occupy more accessible and prestige premises at Stockley Park and the MoD site at
Uxbridge; the size and layout of the existing premises are unsuitable in terms of modern
office and industrial requirements including ease of access to the site; and the
redevelopment for residential use would, in principle, be acceptable in land use terms.

In considering the principle of the development the location of the site within the Heathrow
Opportunity Area is a key consideration. Strategic Objective S)23 of the Local Plan Part 1
is to develop a strategy for the area in order to ensure local people benefit from economic
and employment growth and social and environmental improvements.  The Local Plan
Part 1 further sets out a general direction of growth within Yiewsley and West Drayton to
be achieved through a mix of uses, including residential, in order to ensure the benefits to
be provided by the Crossrail connection are maximised.

The National Planning Policy Frameworks support for sustainable economic growth is also
or principal significant to consideration of this case.

Page 110



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

It is considered that the proposed development would serve to significantly enhance a key
site in Yiewsley, within proximity to the high street and station, which is currently run down
and underutilised. The development would enhance the quality of the built environment,
provide additional homes and generate additional footfall and activity within the high
street.  All of these factors and the development overall would contribute to the economic
growth, the regeneration of the area and the vitality of the centre and weigh significantly in
favour of the development.

The site currently has a Public Transport Accessibility Level of 3. The proposal is for 208
units with a total of 621 habitable rooms, which equates to 2.99 habitable rooms per unit.
The proposed scheme would have a density of 239.1 units/hectare or 713.8 habitable
rooms per hectare. 

The PTAL of the site at present is 3 (however there is a committed major infrastructure
project in the form of Crossrail which will increase the PTAL of the site to 4 within the
development plan period).  This is a major driver towards the Council's adopted strategic
objective which seeks to secure growth within Yiewsley/West Drayton during the
development plan period and achieving this objective will require the Council to consider
committed and possible future enhancements which will serve to facilitate this growth.
Accordingly, it is considered that the application should be assessed having regard to the
improved PTAL which would be provided by Crossrail.

The Public Transport Acessibility Level would rise to at least a PTAL 4 when Crosrail
opens in around 2018. The London Plan guidelines for PTAL 4 allows 70-260 units per
hectare or 200-700 habitable rooms per hectare.  The proposal will comply with the
London Plan density guidance when the PTAL increases.

The density of the development is therefore considered to be appropriate.

The proposal site does not lie in an archaeological priority area, Conservation Area, does
not contain any listed buildings and is not in an area of special local character.

No airport safeguarding issues arise from the proposed development.

The site does not lie in the Green Belt.

Policy BE13 states that new development will not be permitted if the layout and
appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area
which the local planning authority considers it desirable to retain or enhance.

Policy BE26 states that within town centres the design, layout and landscaping of new
buildings will be expected to reflect the role, overall scale and character of the town
centres as a focus of shopping and employment activity.

London Plan Policy 7.1 sets out a series of overarching design principles for development
in London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world-class, high quality design and design-led
change in key locations. In addition to Chapter 7, London Plan policies relating to density
(3.4) and sustainable design and construction (5.3) are also relevant.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of development ranging from more

Page 111



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

traditional rows of terraced properties with retail at ground floor level and residential or
office use above, to more modern and larger scale commercial and residential buildings.

The site currently comprises a mix of industrial and commercial buildings of a variety of
ages, styles and heights, although the maximum height at present is 4 storeys along the
Bentinck Road frontage. Much of the surrounding area comprises two and three storey
buildings, with the taller buildings, some up to 5 storeys in part, located toward the town
centre and along the canal. The building on the High Street frontage proposed for partial
demolition to accommodate the new access, is also particularly attractive and one of the
few buildings of any architectural/townscape merit remaining on this part of the High
Street.

The Urban Design Officer raises no objections to the scale, height and massing of the
amended proposal. It is considered that, given the positioning of the building within the
site and the increase in height and massing towards the centre of the site, the proposed
buildings would not appear unduly prominent within the street scene and would be
compatible with the scale of surrounding consenetd residential development. No
objections are raised to the siting of the play area.

The external design of the buildings and proposed building materials maintain a balanced
and appropriate design response with regard to the scale and context of the site. It is
considered that a condition should be imposed on any permission requiring the
submission of external materials details prior to the commencement of works.

Subject to compliance with this condition, it is considered that the scheme is compliant
with Policies BE13, BE19 and BE21 of the Local Plan, relevant London Plan policies and
design guidance.

In relation to outlook, Saved Policy BE21 requires new residential developments to be
designed to protect the outlook of adjoining residents. The design guide 'Residential
Layouts' advises that for two or more storey buildings, adequate distance should be
maintained to avoid over dominance. A minimum distance of 15m is required, although
this distance will be dependent on the extent and bulk of the buildings.

Policies BE20 and BE24 seek to ensure that new development does not generate adverse
impacts in respect to sunlight and privacy. Because of the orientation of the site, and the
size and siting of the proposed building, no significant loss of daylight and sunlight to
adjoining properties would result from this development. The proposed development is
considered to be consistent with Policies BE20 and BE24 of the Local Plan.

Policy BE23 of the UDP requires the provision of external amenity space, sufficient to
protect the amenity of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings and which
is usable in terms of its shape and siting. The Council's SPD Residential Layouts specifies
amenity space standards for flats.

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary Planning
Document - Residential layouts, suggests that the following shared amenity space for flats
and maisonettes is provided:

1 bedroom flat - 20m2 per flat
2 bedroom flat - 25m2 per flat
3+ bedroom flat - 30m2 per flat

Page 112



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Based on the current accommodation schedule the required amenity space provision for
208 dwellings would be as follows: 

44 x 20 = 880sq m
123 x 25 = 3075sq m
41 x 30 = 1230sq m
total = 5185sq m

Following the Major Applications Committee meeting on 18th July, further discussions
took place between Officers and the Planning Agent regarding the amenity space
provision, particularly how the figures with in the documentation submitted within the
application were derived. During these discussions it came to light that the amenity space
figures provided in the documentation were calculated incorrectly. An accurate
assessment of the provision within the development having regard to these clarifications is
provided below.

The current development proposal provides 5,217m2 of amenity space in the form of
shared amenity space at ground and roof level together with private balconies. Childrens
play space is also provided. The amenity space provided is considered acceptable, in
compliance with the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Residential
Layouts and Saved Policy BE23 of the UDP.

Overall, it is considered that the scheme would provide for sufficient amenity space of a
satisfactory quality. As such the provision of amenity space is considered to accord with
Policy BE23 (which requires sufficient provision of amenity space for future occupiers in
the interest of residential amenity).

UNIT SIZE
The London Plan (July 2011) sets out minimum rooms sizes for various sized residential
units. The proposal is for 44 x 1 bedroom flats, 123 x 2 bedroom and 41 x 3 bedroom
flats. The applicant submitted amended plans with all unit sizes meeting the minimum
floor space standards as set out above. The scheme now accords with the London Plan
(July 2011) minimum standard and is as such considered acceptable. 

SUNLIGHT/DAYLIGHT
Policies BE20, BE23 and BE24 seek to protect the amenity of new residents by requiring
adequate daylight, access, external amenity space and the protection of resident's
privacy.

The applicant has submitted a daylight/sunlight assessment which indicates that the
proposed residential units will all receive an adequate level of daylight and sunlight.

PRIVACY/OVERLOOKING
The Council's HDAS provides further guidance in respect of privacy, in particular, that the
distance between habitable room windows should not be less than 21m. In this regard, the
proposed unit windows are separated from other dwelling windows by more than 21
metres, which is consistent with the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance. The
placement of balconies on the northern elevation with a depth of 1m would not
compromise compliance in this regard.

Page 113



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

7.12

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Whilst the scheme has been designed to ensure separation distances of at least 21m to
existing neighbouring properties, there were initial concerns about separation distances
between units within the proposed scheme. 

Separation distances between habitable room windows of units within the scheme are
17.7m between Core B and Core C; 18m between Core A and Core B and 20.6m between
Core E and Core G. There are also instances where the distance between a balcony and
habitable room of a neighbouring flat is 12m, at the northern end of the site close to the
Bentinck Road exit. However, follwoing negotiations with the applicant amended plans
have been submitted and each unit has been designed in such a way, using measures
such as fins and screens, to prevent interlooking between and overlooking of the affected
units. In this regard, Officers are satisfied that there would be no detrimental overlooking
as to justify a refusal within the proposal. 

As such the development is considered to provide an acceptable level of accommodation
in accordance with Polices BE20, BE23 and BE24 of The Local Plan Part 2.

CAR PARKING
Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted car parking standards. The proposal would provide 197 parking
spaces for the 208 residential units, which equates to a ratio of 0.95 spaces per dwelling.
The Highways Officer reviewed this proposal and considered that as the site is
predominantly for 1 and 2 bedroom flats within a town centre location and has a PTAL
score of 3, no objection was raised to the parking provision provided at the site subject to
a condition . Therefore, the development is considered to comply with Policy AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies.

CYCLE PARKING
Policy AM9 of the UDP requires cyclist facilities to be provided for development proposals.
The Council's current cycle standards are 1 space per unit. The development would
provide 256 cycle spaces for the 208 residential units together with 16 visitor cysle spaces
and 10 cycle spaces for the commercial unit. This is in excess of the minimum parking
standards. Therefore, the proposed development is in accordance with the adopted
Parking Standards, Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies and Policy 6.9
of the London Plan (July 2011).

TRAFFIC IMPACT
The highways officer has reviewed the proposal and considered that the proposal would
have an acceptable impact to traffic in the surrounding streets. They have also reviewed
the location of the refuse and recycling storage and considers this to be acceptable, in
terms of their collection and the impact of this to highway safety. Therefore, the
development is considered to comply with Policy AM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
Policies.

Urban Design matters are discussed in detail under paragraph 7.07 of this report.

Security Issues have been incorporated into the design of the development and will be
secured by a recommended condition.

The proposed layout and access are, on balance, considered acceptable.

Accessible Hillingdon requires all new residential units to be built to lifetime home

Page 114



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

standards and 10% of units designed to wheelchair accessible standards. Further
guidance is also provided on floor space standards for new residential development to
ensure sound environmental conditions are provided on site. 

Policy 3.8 of the London Plan and guidance within the HDAS - Accessible Hillingdon
requires new residential developments to achieve Lifetime Homes Standards and for 10%
of the units to be easily adaptable for wheelchair users. The scheme provides 25
wheelchair units, which equates to 10% of all units proposed. This is considered
acceptable.

The Access Officer is satisfied with the level of facilities provided subject to minor
revisions to the internal layout of the units to ensure full compliance with all 16 Lifetime
Home standards (as relevant) and Wheelchair Home Standards for 21 of the units.
Subject to a condition to ensure compliance, it is considered that the scheme accords with
the aims of Policies 3.4 and 7.2 of the London Plan July 2011, the Hillingdon Design and
Access Statement (HDAS) Accessible Hillingdon and Policy AM15 of the UDP.

The London Plan sets the policy framework for affordable housing delivery in London.
Policy 3.12 and 3.13 requires that boroughs should seek the maximum reasonable
amount of affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mix-
use schemes, having regard to their affordable housing targets. 

The Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (supplementary planning
guidance) adopted in July 2008 replaces the previous Supplementary Planning Guidance
and updates the information and requirements of the Affordable Housing supplementary
planning guidance adopted in May 2006. Chapter 5 on Affordable Housing from the
Planning Obligations supplementary planning guidance paragraph 5.14 states, the council
will always seek the provision of affordable housing on-site except in exceptional
circumstances. The council will consider affordable housing tenure mix on a site by site
basis with reference to housing needs, financial viability and/or the London Plan as
appropriate.

Paragraph 5.22 states that the Council will seek the maximum reasonable amount of
affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mixed use
schemes. The policy acknowledges a balance between the need for affordable housing
that the economic viability of private housing developments. Where less than 35%
affordable housing is proposed, a justification for the departure from the London Plan will
be required, together with a financial viability appraisal to demonstrate that the maximum
affordable housing provision is being delivered on site.

The application exceeds the threshold of 10 units and above, therefore affordable housing
provision by way of a S106 Legal Agreement is required. A Financial Viability Assessment
(FVA) has been provided. This has confirmed that the scheme is not capable of providing
more than 14% of on site affordable housing. This level of contribution has been verified
by a third party assessor and is therefore considered acceptable.

Policy BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies states, amongst other things
that development proposals will be expected to retain and utilise topographical and
landscape features of merit.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has raised no concerns regarding the
landscape layout within the development site itself, which would provide for an appropriate

Page 115



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

mix of hard and soft landscaping supplemented by new tree planting throughout the
development.

The residential element of the scheme would result in 37,050 litres of refuse per week.
This would require at least 34 x 1100 litre euro bins to be provided for refuse storage
within the site. The proposal makes provision for 35 x 1100 litre bins, which is considered
adequate in terms of the quantum of refuse storage provided. 

Refuse is provided in 7 refuse stores at basement ground floor level in each of the cores
of the proposed buildings. A bin store is also provided for the B1 office unit. The level of
waste and recycling provision is acceptable and vehicle tracking diagrams have been
submitted demonstrating that the development can be adequately service by refuse
vehicles.

Policies within Chapter 5 of the London Plan require developments to provide for
reductions in carbon emissions, including a reduction of 25% in carbon emissions, in line
with Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4.

The application is supported by an assessment which indicates that the development has
been designed to achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.  No objections are
raised to the details submitted. 

Subject to an appropriate condition to secure this implementation within the final design
the scheme will comply with adopted policy.

There are no specific flooding or drainage issues associated with this application.
However, in the event that this application is approved, it is recommended that a
sustainable urban drainage condition be imposed.

The application site is on a busy industrial estate. It is therefore reasonable to expect that
traffic noise is likely to be high enough to affect the residential amenities of future
occupiers. It is considered that flatted development is acceptable in principle, subject to
adequate sound insulation. 

The acoustic assessment contains recommendations which, if implemented, would reduce
noise to levels that comply with reasonable standards of comfort, as defined in British
Standard BS 8233:1999 'Sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings - Code of
Practice'. It is considered that the issue of sound insulation can be addressed by the
imposition of suitable conditions, as suggested by the Council's Environmental Protection
Unit. Subject to compliance with these conditions, it is considered that the scheme would
be in compliance with Saved Policy OE5 of the UDP.

Comments have either deen dealt with in the body of the report or by way of
recommended condition.

Policy R17 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 states that
the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of
recreation open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and
other community, social and educational facilities through planning obligations in
conjunction with other development proposals.

Page 116



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The following Heads of Terms are sought:

1. Affordable Housing: 13% by habitable room, plus a review mechanism.

2. Education: a financial contribution in the sum of £770,426, please note that I have used
the discounted sum here which we use when the council gets full nomination rights for
affordable housing delivery

3. Health: a financial contribution in the sum of £87,777.35

4. Libraries: a financial contribution in the sum of £9,317.76

5. Air Quality: A contribution in the sum of £12,500

6. Construction Training: deliver an in-kind scheme to the value of the financial
contribution.

7. Project Management and Monitoring: 5% of total cash contributions (£44,001.10)

8. Highways Works:  as required by the highways engineer and to be completed prior to
occupation as per normal. 

The scheme is also liable for the Mayors Community Infrastructure Levy (£684874.98).

None.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Page 117



Major Applications Planning Committee - 7th August 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The application does sit comfortably alongside the thrust of the Planning for Growth
Ministerial Statement which states, amongst other things, that there is a pressing need to
ensure that the planning system does everything it can to help secure a swift return to
economic growth. It goes on to say that the Government's top priority is to promote
sustainable economic growth and jobs, and that in determining planning applications
appropriate weight should be given to the need to support economic recovery. 

The scheme is considered acceptable in principle. It would provide adequately for future
occupiers and not cause harm to the amenity of neighbours. Subject to conditions and
planning obligations set out in the report, approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and Part 2.
Hillingdon Design and Access Statement 'Residential Layouts'.
The London Plan 2011.
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.
National Planning Policy Framework.

Matt Kolaszewski 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 118



4

Works

Delaford House

1 to 6

Bridge House

2

16

73
29

G
lobe H

ouse

Bentinck Court

Grand Union Canal

59

St Stephen's

16

S
TA

TIO
N

 R
O

A
D

1

2

Depot

PH

19

26.8m

BENTINCK RO
AD

1 
to

 4

11 to 19

32 to 35

10

4

Court
Betjeman

El Sub Sta

Works

1

SL

2

21

Towing Path

11

Level Crossing

11

6

Signal Gantry

Club

Works

WINNOCK R
OAD

11

1

12

33

PADCROFT ROAD

20

Lodge

28.0m

14

15 11

12

10

44

9

25
24

1

21

23

26

18

7

1

4 5 9

10 13

37

5

27.4m

1 to 38

Mill House

1 to 8Brook

19

23

28

ST S
TEPHEN'S

 R
O

16

32

5

3

4a2 House

57

23

42

SL

TAVISTO
CK

 R
O

A
D

16

COLHAM M
IL

L R
OAD

15

20 Works

48

4b

24

15

LB

35

39

33

22

20 to 25

PEPLOW CLOSE

30

13

H
U

M
B

E
R

 C
L

O
S

E

3

1

Weirs

17

38

Ivy Leaf

El Sub Sta

17

41

34

40

WIMPOLE ROAD

1 to 38

Union W
harf

The Coach

House

19a

24
22

2a

2b

O
VE

3

2

1

15
13

34

4c

CR

C
ol

ha
m

House

Path

Court

YIEWSLEY

Centre

4

PO

PH

Arms Hotel

Horton Parade

Works

30.4m

Works

42

Bank

36

6

House

The Vicarage

Bank

El

12

(PH)

30.7m

32.7m

73

2
3

30.3m

Kitchener

Yiewsley

71

Bentleys

4

67

2a

MP 13.25

MP

9

86

Station

70

11

1

38 to 4
0

1

B
ri

d
ge

1a

The De Burgh

Sta

PH

New

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

81

Parade

19

7

STATION APPROACH

13

1 to
 18

1

4

Bakery

5

Ashley

5

11

15

SL

W
A

R
W

IC
K

 R
O

A
D

19

Sub

10

84

Sub

34
26 to 3

2

El

90

Health

Sta

15

88

MP

7 to 9

Bignell House

Horton house

TA
C

H
B

R
O

O
K

 R
O

A
D

22

1 to 6

Deen Court

24

3a

2 to 6

2

28

30

32

25

1

17

2a

PO

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Former Padcroft Works
Tavistock Road

Yiewsley

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:2,000

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

45200/APP/2012/3082

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



FB

1

El

Lake

Sub Sta
Pond

BENNETSFIELD ROAD

1

Hors
e Ride

Shelter

Club House

Pond

Lake

2

R
O

U
N

D
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

El Sub Sta

Pond

FB

Waterview House

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

The Arena, Stockley Park
Stockley Road
West Drayton

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:2,000

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

37800/APP/2013/161

Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



D Fn

N
E

W
 R

O
A

D

9

24

21

18
a

UXBRIDGE ROAD

13

R
os

en
ga

rt
en

23

2

36

7

35

South

45.4m
Hillingdon Heath

6

6

PA
G

E
T

 R
O

A
D

D
E

 S
A

LIS
 R

O
A

D

21

2

Playground

12

Knights Gardens

945

1

2

17

31 to 42

59

1

1

30

17

G
or

ra
n

Lodge

12

12

18

R
U

S
S

E
T

 C
L

O
S

E

44.2m

20 19

17

Sta

22

C
im

ar
on

92
9

FU
LH

A
M

 C
LO

S
E

919

925

El

94
1

2

Sub

22 Church

Addiscombe Court

8

47

61
a

1

H
E

W
E

N
S

 R
O

A
D

943

927
1390

Pp

Connaught Heights

1 t0 48

2c

Ward Bdy

B
oro C

onst &
 W

ard B
dy

CR

C
R

921 to
923

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Knights of Hillingdon Florists
Uxbridge Road

Hillingdon

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

15407/APP/2013/1170

Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



The Cottage

43

46.0m

13

42

54

2

7

8

8

15

RAF Station

Jupiter

1 
to

 1
2 Heights

36.3m

40

CLOSE

to

9

Y
E

W
 T

R
E

E
 R

O
A

D

12

44.5m

16

1

44.8m

96

24

5

1

ST
 A

N
D

R
E

W
'S

 R
O

A
D

P
A

T
C

H
 C

L
O

S
E

7

TCBs

B
O

W
L

IN
G

Playground

13

ST ANDREW'S ROAD

Leigh Mallory Bridge

Weir

LB

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

TCB

43.9m

39.3m

TCB

67

Sports Ground

65

RAF Station

FB

PW

1

K
E

IT
H

13

PORTAL CLOSE

23

51

5

7

3

Mast

2

PA
R

K
 R

O
A

D

8

47

13

1

Playgroun
d

GOSSAGE ROAD

58

SA
U

N
D

E
R

S
 R

O
A

D

1

8

Station

34.1m

10

Playground

RAF Station

63

37

FSs

46

ST ANDREW'S ROAD

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

37.2m

Athletic Ground
41 52

G
R

AY
'S

 R
O

A
D

47

35.1m

Run
ni

ng
 T

ra
ck

58

Lighting Tower

Lighting Tower

Lighting Tower

Hillingdon

House

290

294

78

76 80

75

84

73

79

82

77

83

74

81

´

May
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Former RAF Uxbridge
Hillingdon Road

Uxbridge

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:2,500

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

585/APP/2013/979

Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



4

Works

Delaford House

1 to 6

Bridge House

2

16

73
29

G
lobe H

ouse

Bentinck Court

Grand Union Canal

59

St Stephen's

16

S
TA

TIO
N

 R
O

A
D

1

2

Depot

PH

19

26.8m

BENTINCK RO
AD

1 
to

 4

11 to 19

32 to 35

10

4

Court
Betjeman

El Sub Sta

Works

1

SL

2

21

Towing Path

11

Level Crossing

11

6

Signal Gantry

Club

Works

WINNOCK R
OAD

11

1

12

33

PADCROFT ROAD

20

Lodge

28.0m

14

15 11

12

10

44

9

25
24

1

21

23

26

18

7

1

4 5 9

10 13

37

5

27.4m

1 to 38

Mill House

1 to 8Brook

19

23

28

ST S
TEPHEN'S

 R
OAD

16

32

5

3

4a2 House

57

23

42

SL

TAVISTO
CK

 R
O

A
D

16

COLHAM M
IL

L R
OAD

15

20

22

Works

48

4b

24

15

LB

35

39

33

22

20 to 25

PEPLOW CLOSE

30

13

H
U

M
B

E
R

 C
L

O
S

E

3

1

Weirs

17

38

Ivy Leaf

El Sub Sta

17

41

34

40

WIMPOLE ROAD

1 to 38

Union W
harf

The Coach

House

19a

24
22

2a

2b

G
R

O
VE

3

2

1

15
13

34

4c

CR

C
ol

ha
m

House

Path

Court

YIEWSLEY

Centre

4

PO

PH

Arms Hotel

Horton Parade

Works

30.4m

Works

42

Bank

36

6

House

The Vicarage

Bank

El

12

(PH)

30.7m

32.7m

73

2
3

30.3m

Kitchener

Yiewsley

71

Bentleys

4

67

2a

MP 13.25

MP

9

86

Station

70

11

1

38 to 4
0

1

B
ri

d
ge

1a

The De Burgh

Sta

PH

New

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

81

Parade

19

7

STATION APPROACH

13

1 to
 18

1

4

Bakery

5

Ashley

5

11

15

SL

W
A

R
W

IC
K

 R
O

A
D

19

Sub

10

84

Sub

34
26 to 3

2

El

90

Health

Sta

15

88

MP

7 to 9

Bignell House

Horton house

TA
C

H
B

R
O

O
K

 R
O

A
D

22

1 to 6

Deen Court

24

3a

2 to 6

2

28

30

32

25

1

17

2a

PO

´

July
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Former Padcroft Works
Tavistock Road

Yiewsley

Major Applications

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:2,000

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

45200/APP/2012/3082

Page 182


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 13 June and 25 June 2013
	130625 - minutes

	6 The Arena, Stockley Park, Stockley Road, West Drayton    37800/APP/2013/161
	7 Knights of Hillingdon, Uxbridge Road, Hillingdon    15407/APP/2013/1170
	8 Former RAF Uxbridge, Hillingdon Road, Uxbridge     585/APP/2013/979
	9 Norwich Union House, 1 - 3 Bakers Road, Uxbridge     8218/APP/2011/1853
	10 Padcroft Works, Tavistock Road, West Drayton    45200/APP/2012/3082
	Plans for Major Applications  Planning Committee

